




DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
 

MONDAY, JANUARY 13, 2014 
6:30 PM 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VII. Consent Agenda: 
A. Approval of minutes from December 9, 2013 DRB 

Panel A meeting 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Wilsonville City Hall 
29799 SW Town Center Loop E 
Wilsonville, Oregon 97070 
 
Development Review Board – Panel A 
Minutes–December 9, 2013 6:30 PM 
 
I. Call to Order: 
Chair Mary Fierros Bower called the Development Review Board (DRB)-Panel A meeting to order at 
6:25 p.m.  
 
II. Chairman’s Remarks: 
The Conduct of Hearing and Statement of Public Notice were read into the record.   
 
III. Roll Call: 
Present for roll call were: Mary Fierros Bower, Lenka Keith, Ken Ruud, and Simon Springall. Jerry 

Greenfield and Council Liaison Susie Stevens were absent. 
 
Staff present were: Blaise Edmonds, Mike Kohloff, and Steve Adams. 
 
IV. Citizens’ Input: This is an opportunity for visitors to address the Development Review Board on 
items not on the agenda.  There was none.  
 
V. City Council Liaison Report:  
No report was given due to Councilor Stevens’ absence.  

 
VI. Consent Agenda:   

A. Approval of minutes of September 9, 2013 DRB Panel A meeting 
 

Ken Ruud moved to approve the September 9, 2013 DRB Panel A meeting minutes as presented.   
Simon Springall seconded the motion, which passed 3-0-1 with Lenka Keith abstaining. 

 
VII.  Public Hearing:   

A. Resolution No. 266.   Large Lot Tentative Subdivision Plat (Villebois Village Center 
No. 3):  RCS-Villebois Development LLC – Owner.  The applicant is requesting 
approval of a nine (9) lot tentative subdivision plat in SAP-Central of Villebois. The 
subject property is Tax Lot 100 of Section 15AD, T3S, R1W, Clackamas County, Oregon.   
Staff:  Blaise Edmonds 

 
 Case Files: DB13-0043 – Tentative Subdivision Plat 

 
Chair Fierros Bower called the public hearing to order at 6:31 p.m. and read the conduct of hearing 
format into the record. All Board members declared for the record that they had visited the site. No board 
member, however, declared a conflict of interest, bias, or conclusion from a site visit. No board member 
participation was challenged by any member of the audience. 
 
Blaise Edmonds, Manager of Current Planning, announced that the criteria applicable to the 
application were stated on Page 1 of 21 of the Staff report, which was entered into the record. Copies of 
the report were made available to the side of the room.  
 
Mr. Edmonds presented the Staff report via PowerPoint with the following key comments: 

Development Review Board Panel A  December 9, 2013 
Minutes       Page 1 of 9 
 



• He corrected the date of the memorandum from Development Engineering Manager Steve Adams in 
Exhibit C1 on page 7 of 21 to read, “November 20 22, 2013”, adding that the memorandum dated 
November 20 had been Mr. Adams’ original memorandum; the memorandum dated November 22 
was his revised memorandum. 

• Using an aerial map, he noted the location of the 24.88-acre subject project site, which was northeast 
of the newly completed Piazza and mixed-use building, and south of a Polygon residential project 
being constructed along with the streets on the peripheral edge. Lot No. 3 would be a future Hilltop or 
Montague Park, which would be developed as part of the Villebois Master Parks Plan. 
• The Applicant was proposing a nine lot subdivision. Key streets going through the project would 

be SW Orleans Lp, SW Villebois Dr, and SW Costa Circle West. 
• He read the Applicant’s submittal stating, “The whole purpose for the large lot subdivision was to 

create lots for convenience and purposes intended for future land division site development. The 
configuration of the proposed lots and the design would be consistent with the SAP Central and 
Villebois Master Plan so that future development would be able to occur in the accordance to the 
plans and policies of Villebois Master Plan and the City of Wilsonville Development Code.”  
• He explained the Applicant did not intend to develop the large lots with actual development 

permits; the subdivision plat was intended strictly for the conveyance of large property to other 
prospective developers. Those developers would come back through the public hearing process 
for a Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) and Final Development Plan (FDP) to fine tune what 
would ultimately be put on the large lots.  A substantial public hearing process would be held for 
any development of the lots.  

• The City Engineer was requesting to acquire right-of-way for SW Orleans Lp, SW Villebois Dr, and 
SW Costa Circle West. There would be internal streets, as seen around the Piazza, that would be 
included in the development of the lots, but the Applicant wanted to have some latitude and flexibility 
with regard to the internal structure of those lots. The Applicant could provide further explanation, 
but he believed it was because the Villebois Village Plan was 10 to 12 years old and market 
conditions had changed. 
• No utilities would be extended and the actual construction of the streets would not occur at this 

time. The City was requesting right-of-way and the dedication of that right-of-way was shown in 
the half gray-toned areas on the slide.  

• The conditions of approval were on pages 5 and 6 of 21. He noted Condition PD2 further emphasized 
that, “No development should occur on the proposed lots which would have a significant impact in 
use of the adjoining right-of-way and existing public facilities prior to recordation of the subsequent 
subdivision partition plats (See Finding 8).” He added that Mr. Adams had stated in his memorandum 
that “Per the Applicant’s statement, no public works construction would occur with this subdivision 
application.”  He was sure the Applicant was working with potential investors to convey the property. 

• He concluded that this part of Villebois was where the highest density of residential would occur, 
such as the Garden Apartments, Village Apartments, as well as more row houses; no single family 
would be included. The core area of Villebois was designed for the highest density and that would not 
change; it was just a matter of the placement and design of the units that would come in the 
subsequent PDP and FDP applications.  
 

Chair Fierros Bower asked what was being proposed in the Piazza area.  
 
Mr. Edmonds confirmed that Piazza had already been built; the opening ceremony was held a couple 
months prior. He encouraged the Board members to visit as it was a beautiful park with wonderful 
features.  
 
Ken Ruud asked if Staff had any idea of what the impact this project would have on Wilsonville’s multi-
family housing percentage once the area was built.  
 

Development Review Board Panel A  December 9, 2013 
Minutes       Page 2 of 9 
 



Mr. Edmonds replied this area was factored into the Master Plan about 10 years ago, and when the 
Villebois Master Plan was adopted, the Comprehensive Plan was also amended to embody that kind of 
density, so it had been on books for a long time. SAP Central was designed for 1,011 total units in the 
core area, which was designed to be the critical mass of density and then the lower density spread out in 
concentric rings outside the Village Center to the peripheral edges along Grahams Ferry Rd where larger 
lots would be located. 
• He believed the current and previous Councils, the decision makers, understood that was the master 

plan for Villebois. He believed the issues of the additional increased multiple family residential was 
from what had been recently seen outside of Villebois, as there was a huge, unprecedented surge of 
apartment activity. A considerable amount of single-family construction has started, primarily with 
Polygon Residential, Lennar Homes, and Matrix. The potential for about 500 to 600 new single-
family detached homes had been approved in the last two years in Villebois, which would bring that 
percentage down in terms of the balance of residential single-family and multiple-family, so it would 
not look so uneven in three years. However, there would be more apartments in the Villebois Village 
Central area, depending on the economic demand for multiple family housing. The current trend is 
single-family homes because interest rates are still low. If the interest rates go back up and people 
could no long afford to buy homes, they would look for apartments to rent. This is the ebb and flow 
of residential marketplace in which developers find themselves in. 

 
Mr. Ruud asked if there was a projection of where the City would end up once these lots were built.  
 
Mr. Edmonds responded that Villebois was approved for more than 2,500 homes, which included 
includes apartments, town homes, condos and single family homes. He believed the current range is 
between 2,600 or 2,700 units. More density had been added over the years with smaller lots and smaller 
single-family houses. He reiterated that this core area alone had approximately 1,011 units.  
 
Simon Springall believed Ravenna Lp was missing from the engineer’s request for right-of-way, noting 
it could be seen on the top left and bottom center of the pictures displayed and asked why that street was 
not included.   
 
Steve Adams, Engineering Development Manager, replied that in discussions with Nancy Kraushaar, 
Community Development Director, Staff decided to push for the three streets that were locked in on both 
sides: SW Costa Circle, SW Orleans Lp, and SW Villebois Dr, which were either constructed, being 
constructed, or had been previous DRB approval to those locations on either end; therefore, those streets 
could not move much. Ravenna Loop was not as locked in as those other streets. A Villebois Master Plan 
had showed a street coming through, however with the changes in Central, Staff believed that if the 
developers needed to shift it north or south, there was a long enough gap to make the connecting points. 
Staff did not feel Ravenna Lp needed to be locked into its location at this point. There were several other 
streets in the Villebois Master Plan that were not included, because Staff did not want to lock it in so tight 
that there was no opportunity for adjustment as the applications were submitted.  
 
Mike Kohloff, City Attorney, referenced Condition PFA6, which addressed the dedicated right-of-way 
necessary for SW Villebois Dr North, stating it appeared from the diagram that dedication was needed on 
Lots 1, 4, 7, and part of Lot 8, which Mr. Adams confirmed. He asked if that had changed because it only 
stated Lots 1 and 2. He read the condition adding he assumed Mr. Adams was referring to Villebois Dr 
North.  
  
Mr. Adams clarified that the dedication from Lots 8 and 7 had already been shown on the early 
application and that he should have written it to state Lots 1 and 4 because those were the two lots not 
shown at the time, but it would be for all four of those lots. In the original application that was submitted, 
the Applicant only showed a half-street dedication from Lots 7 and 8.  

Development Review Board Panel A  December 9, 2013 
Minutes       Page 3 of 9 
 



 
Mr. Kohloff asked whether all of it should be shown in the presentation.  
 
Mr. Adams responded he did not include it because it was already shown, but he should have worded it 
differently because Lots 7 and 8 were already addressed. The dedication was still needed from Lots 1 and 
4 as shown, however it should have stated that Lots 1, 4, 7, and 8. He agreed Mr. Kohloff was correct.  
 
Mr. Kohloff confirmed SW Costa Circle was Lots 2 and 3 and SW Orleans Lp was Lots 3 and 4. He 
asked if there was an offset for each of those two streets, because it appeared from the drawing that Costa 
SW Circle was offset from the existing street or right-of-way to the north.  
 
Mr. Adams confirmed there was a bit of an offset there. He explained that in Villebois, depending on the 
type of adjacent lot, whether a regional park, commercial, or residential, street widths varied based on 
where the sidewalk was located, on-street parking, etc. and the right-of-way would move in and out 
depending on what it bordered. That was why SW Orleans Loop narrowed by several feet adjacent to the 
future park on Lot 3; whereas prior to that, on-street parking was allowed adjacent to the residential area. 
Villebois’ whole philosophy was to not allow on-street parking next to parks so people would have a nice 
visual background of the park as they drove by, not a bunch of parked cars. SW Costa Circle would be the 
same way; Lot 2 would be housing with on street parking so the street right-of-way would be a bit wider, 
but on the south side, next to Hilltop Park, there would be no parking. Villebois Dr would get wider as it 
approached Lot 4. Again, the Villebois Master Plan showed a slightly different street section adjacent to 
Lot 7 as opposed to where it crossed over to Lot 4. He had discussed his concerns with Pacific 
Community Design, and Staff chose to leave the streets as shown currently, with the agreement that the 
right-of-way widths would be adjusted more precisely, based on sidewalk widths, parking, etc. at the time 
of individual lot development. 
• He confirmed these adjustments would be made when reviewing the PDPs as the different lots 

coming in for development would each have more specific requests for regarding right-of-ways, 
location, product type, etc. 

 
Chair Fierros Bower called for the Applicant’s presentation. 
 
Rudy Kadlub, President, Costa Pacific Communities, and Developer, Villebois Village Center, 
11422 SW Barber St, Wilsonville, OR  97070 said he did not have much to add to the presentation but 
wanted to clarify the application in the simplest terms. 
• He explained that currently, the nine lots were just one lot, and in order to develop or sell any portion, 

he would have to create a subdivision; therefore they proposed dividing the one lot into nine parcels, 
one which would be a future park, so the eight parcels were in approximate locations for the types of 
zoning and development that might occur in the future.  
• For example, Lot 1 was mostly a row home area. Moving forward, Costa could develop it as row 

homes, or sell it to another builder who could come in with a PDP on that specific lot without 
having to delay to go through this current process. The Applicant wanted to be in a position to get 
the subdivision plat out of the way, so they were ready to move forward on any of the lots.  

 
Chair Fierros Bower confirmed there was no questions for the Applicant and called for public testimony 
in favor, opposed and neutral to the application. 
 
Les Modell, 11342 SW Barber St, Wilsonville, OR said that his residence was approximately a block 
and a half southwest of Piazza Park. He noted that while his card stated he was neutral to the proposition, 
he clarified was personally in favor of the proposal, but wanted to discuss the right-of-ways.  
• He noted a pedestrian was hit on Barber St that week at the corner of SW Orleans and Barber St. 

Luckily, the 16-year old boy was not seriously injured. Speed was not a factor, but he believed the 

Development Review Board Panel A  December 9, 2013 
Minutes       Page 4 of 9 
 



visibility, cars, and the fact that SW Orleans Loop, which was part of the approval process, had heavy 
pedestrian traffic were factors in the accident. The two collectors in the area were Barber St and Costa 
Circle, which was also a part of tonight’s approval process. He understood a speed study was 
completed, but he did not believe that was actually relevant to the accident.  

• Villebois was a pedestrian-friendly neighborhood. Barber St was a major collector from the Costa 
roundabout to Grahams Ferry Rd and Costa is a minor collector in the section actually being 
discussed. Villebois Dr was currently a dead-end, but after approval, it would connect to Costa Circle 
and Boeckman Rd as a collector of some kind.  

• He distributed some graphics, entered into the record as Exhibit D1, he created to better explain his 
point. 
• He noted the Street Plan, Figure 7 in the Master Plan showed Villebois Dr as a major collector 

between what would be a traffic circle, shown as a half circle at Costa Circle, and Boeckman Rd 
where Villebois Dr would apparently connect to a stub of a traffic circle on Boeckman Rd.  

• His issue was that although the manual for Uniform Traffic Control Devices, which was part of 
Oregon Law under ORS 810.200 and OAR 734.020.0005, [The City is not sure if Mr. Modell had 
quoted the correct OAR for 734.020.0005] as amended December 21, 2011, stated when and where 
traffic signs, street markings, and road symbols could be used, it did state that four- way stops could 
not be used for speed purposes. However, there were a couple of places where multi-way stops were 
an option. He noted Subsection 2B.07 Multi-way Stops, Option 05, listed four criteria that might be 
considered in an engineering study. Criterion B stated, “The need to control vehicle-pedestrian 
conflicts near locations that generate high pedestrian volumes.” Criterion D stated, “An intersection 
of two residential neighborhood collectors, thru streets of similar design and operating characteristics 
where a multi-way stop control would improve traffic operational characteristics of the 
neighborhood.” 

• He contended that the cost of the traffic through Barber St, which was totally uncontrolled from its 
beginning at Kinsman Rd to its end at Grahams Ferry Rd, was an attractive nuisance. During the 
daytime, it was not so bad, but there were a number of cars that speed through the area because it was 
a totally unregulated, unrestricted road. Once the subject large lot subdivision was developed and the 
1,100+ homes were built, the pedestrian traffic would grow quite considerably, along with the traffic 
on Villebois Dr, Barber St, SW Orleans Lp, and Costa Circle.  

• He recognized no engineering study could be done or traffic counters used because the roads did not 
lead anywhere or have any traffic; but since the Board was considering opening those roads up as part 
of this subdivision, he suggested including in the approval four-way stops and crosswalks at the 
following three Barber St intersections, at Costa Circle, Villebois Dr, and SW Orleans Lp. 
• He clarified there were already crosswalks at Villebois Dr across Barber St and a stop sign on 

Villebois Dr, but not on Barber St where he believed stop signs should be added. Stop signs 
should also be added at the intersections of Barber St at Costa Circle and SW Orleans Lp. These 
were not terribly expensive propositions and could be easily included at a relatively low upfront 
cost.  

 
Mr. Springall understood that the application did not involve any direct change to Barber St.  
 
Mr. Modell agreed it did not, but it would very specifically include the roads that crossed Barber St and 
the proposal would increase the volume on those cross-streets as a result of the development.  
 
Mr. Springall did not believe making the recommendation that Mr. Modell was requesting was within 
the Board’s jurisdiction. He asked what avenue Mr. Modell could use to make his recommendation.  
 
Mr. Kohloff stated if the Board believed it was appropriate, the Board could make a recommendation as 
part of its decision that the City Engineering Department study the situation when the PDPs come forward 

Development Review Board Panel A  December 9, 2013 
Minutes       Page 5 of 9 
 



because that would be when pedestrian issues were involved. He understood the accident that occurred 
was in a crosswalk area at the intersection. 
 
Mr. Modell interjected it was at an intersection but there was no crosswalk. 
 
Mr. Kohloff continued that the person was traveling at about 7 miles per hour according to the police 
report, and he understood that the boy was on a bike, so it was more of an issue of not paying attention, 
but by who was uncertain. It was worth having the Engineering Department look at, but often there was 
concern about crosswalks creating a false feeling of security, so they had to be very careful. The 
crosswalk design was also a factor; a simple crosswalk that was painted would be much different than one 
with lights, which are very expensive. He agreed safety came first so Staff would look at it when the 
PDPs came forward and Engineering could take a more studied look along with the traffic consultants.  
 
Mr. Modell asked if he was referring to the PDPs on the eight individual lots as they come up.  
 
Mr. Kohloff responded that was correct, noting that at this time, there were no pedestrians and no one 
knew what or when anything would be built there, so there was a timing issue. The PDP would be the 
appropriate time to look because more would be known about the other configurations, such as where the 
internal roads would cross and intersect, etc. He explained that instead of a condition as part of the 
approval, the Board would make it a recommendation.  
 
Lenka Keith asked whether that would be covered under Condition PFA3.  
 
Mr. Modell noted Section 4.262 WC Road Improvements. 
 
Mr. Kohloff clarified that basically stated that no traffic impact report was necessary at the tentative 
approval, but a traffic impact study would be required when the Applicant returned. He advised adding a 
recommendation under specific comments, and then making the recommendation part of the motion, 
because they would be adopted as conditions.  
 
Chair Fierros Bower called for the Applicants rebuttal or response. Hearing none, she closed the public 
hearing at 7:10 pm.  
 
Simon Springall moved to amend Resolution No. 266 as follows:    

• Amend Condition of Approval PFA6 to state, “Lots 1 and 2 1, 4, 7 and 8.”   
• Revise the date on Exhibit C1 to read, “November 20 22, 2013” 
• Add new Exhibit D1 provided by Les Modell via public testimony  
• Add a recommendation to the application that the City Engineering Department look at or 

study adding safe pedestrian crosswalks and four-way stop signs at SW Costa Circle, 
Villebois Dr, and SW Orleans Ave off of Barber St during the PDP process.    

 
Lenka Keith seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Springall said he wanted to clarify the wording of the recommendation. He agreed there should be 
some recommendation, but was not sure about specifically stating that there “must be” new crosswalks or 
stop signs at all three intersections. He wanted to clarify the Board was only recommending that it to be 
considered as it really needed to be a part of a traffic study Mr. Adams or his staff would address. He was 
also concerned that with the eight subdivisions coming in one by one, the traffic study would need to take 
a more realistic view as described by Mr. Modell.  
 

Development Review Board Panel A  December 9, 2013 
Minutes       Page 6 of 9 
 



Mr. Kohloff replied that generally if DKS was going to take a look at the intersections, they would look 
at the different PDPs that would be going in the area. He did not know how they would divide the lots, but 
the Master Plan showed row houses condos or specialty condos going in, so DKS would have to look at 
the whole thing. 
 
Mr. Adams confirmed the City had an early application in for Lot 1 that Staff would be discussing this 
week and they would be also be talking with DKS about some traffic and street related issues as well. He 
noted that as a whole, as each lot came in, Staff would have DKS look at the impacts to the nearest 
intersections that would be affected by the last development. He and Ms. Kraushaar discuss the choices 
available; if they believe development on Lot 1 would impact Villebois Dr and Barber St, they would 
have DKS look at that particular intersection to account for the current traffic and estimate what the 
increased traffic would yield; the same would be done at SW Orleans Lp and Barber St. He added it was 
always a moving target as different phases come through with different developers. Villebois Dr. was 
scheduled to connect to Boeckman as early as next year or possibly 2015. He was unsure of the exact time 
because it was all developer driven, but he believed they had enough demand to make the lots develop. 
Staff always looked at each new application that came in to see what was happening and ensure that they 
had a good handle on the situation.  
 
Mr. Kohloff clarified the question was when looking to develop Lot 1, Staff might have to consider what 
the developments might be on Lots 4 and 7 as that could effect when something might be needed as well; 
although the specifics might not be available, some general information could be used.  
 
Mr. Adams replied Lot 1 would have specific information, depending on what was being proposed by the 
developer, and Staff would refer to the Villebois Master Plan to see what was anticipated for Lots 4, 5, 6, 
and 7. There had always been a range of between 15 and 20 or 30 and 35 different housing types that were 
anticipated within the different areas of Villebois that would also be taken into consideration by DKS 
when they did their traffic modeling of the area.  
 
Mr. Kohloff understood Staff would have enough general information to make those projections even if 
only one lot was being developed at a time.  
 
Mr. Blaise noted there was a motion and now, perhaps, a friendly amendment to the motion. 
 
Mr. Kohloff replied there was a clarification made directing the City Engineers to study stop signs and 
crosswalks at those three areas at the time of the PDP applications.  
 
Mr. Springall asked if a friendly amendment could be made to expand it to be a traffic study for the 
collectors and the major streets in the Villebois area because he was particularly concerned about the 
through traffic between the school and Grahams Ferry Rd on Barber St and then between wherever it was 
on the south and Boeckman Rd along Villebois Dr. These streets going through these residential areas 
would become major connections. 
 
Mr. Kohloff stated some limits existed on what the Board could request under the Code. The Code 
discussed what the impacts would be at the intersections that would be mostly used, and that would 
determine the level of service, whether an F or D level, for instance. Mr. Adams indicated he was aware 
that other areas would be developed that would immediately impact the intersections, so he would scope it 
appropriately with DKS. The traffic studies should provide the general traffic on the major thoroughfare, 
so it would be more than what one or two lots would produce.  
 
Mr. Adams responded that was correct. The Future Study Area, which was the old Living Enrichment 
Center, went through the Planning Commission and a fairly extensive traffic study was completed 

Development Review Board Panel A  December 9, 2013 
Minutes       Page 7 of 9 
 



because it was a major new phase being added to Villebois with more than 100 lots. No overall view had 
been done on the intersections in a number of years, so Staff went back and looked at seven major 
intersections, including Grahams Ferry Rd/Tooze Rd, Boeckman Rd/Tooze Rd, Barber Rd/Grahams Ferry 
Rd and Brown Rd/Wilsonville Rd, to see what the impacts would be from the Future Study Area 
development plus all the changes that had occurred in Villebois over the last several years. At the same 
time, Staff has had some early indication of additional development in Villebois North, which was the 
area adjacent to Tooze Rd, and if that came forward as an application Staff would review those major 
intersections again to see what was happening. City Staff kept a good handle on what was happening with 
the major intersections and would continue to watch them, but that they would most likely focus on the 
internal sections for this particular area.  For infill lots like those being discussed, Staff would not go out 
as far as Boeckman Rd and Villebois Dr because information had been collected on those in the last three 
months. Staff would focus more on the internal intersections in the subject area. 
 
Mr. Springall believed the concern was on the internal intersections; he was just noting that more traffic 
would be going through those streets as they became more connected.  
 
Mr. Adams added that historically, as traffic becomes more dense, traffic slows down because with more 
cars on a street, people slow down because they did not feel as safe. In Villebois when construction 
slowed for a few years, some streets were built that had no homes on them, so east of Costa Circle, people 
tended to drive faster because there was no visual need to slow down.  
 
Mr. Edmonds added the Villebois Master Plan identified SW Villebois Drive as a Woonerf, with the 
idea of the street being a shared road way for pedestrians, cars, and bicyclists. This was a different type of 
street than a public street. 
 
Mr. Kadlub corrected the Woonerf was actually Monte Blanc Dr which would extend down toward the 
school. He reiterated that the concept in the Master Plan was to have the density higher in the middle and 
easing as it went to the edges. Not a lot of the infrastructure was in today, and obviously Barber St was a 
major piece of infrastructure and was one of the main, if not the only entry from the south and southwest 
part of Wilsonville. Currently, there were two ways to get out of Villebois with Barber St and Surrey St, 
but completed, there would be more than 14 different ways to get in and out of Villebois, so a lot of the 
traffic now concentrated on Barber Rd would be diffused. The concern would not be as great because a 
lot of the people would head north across the new Boeckman Rd Extension once Villebois Dr was built 
and Coffee Lake Dr would be another strong north-south connection as Barber St extended across the 
wetlands to Kinsman Rd and connected to Barber St near the WES line. He agreed a lot of people cut 
through on Barber St now, but even though the density would be increasing, the number of ways in and 
out of the community would also increase. He confirmed that DKS was involved with the entire traffic 
and engineering study of the Master Plan, so if done correctly, it would get better as the area developed.  
 
Mr. Kohloff added that Villebois was a very walkable community, so it was important to have 
engineering look to ensure that the pedestrian crossings were safe ways to get to the parks, trails, etc. as 
the community builds out. Areas with longer runs between crosswalks along major streets, for example, 
might need to be broken up.  
 
Mr. Kadlub agreed that should always be considered, adding he would support a crosswalk at SW 
Orleans Lp and Costa Circle with the precaution that they did not want it to be a false sense of safety 
either.  
 
Mr. Kohloff believed it was appropriate that the Board make the recommendation so Staff could take a 
look at it and resolve some of the issues that were raised, which he liked from a liability point as well.   
 

Development Review Board Panel A  December 9, 2013 
Minutes       Page 8 of 9 
 



Chair Fierros Bower restated the motion and called for the vote. 
 

The motion passed unanimously. 
  
Simon Springall moved to approve Resolution No. 266 as amended.  Ken Ruud seconded the 
motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
Chair Fierros Bower read the rules of appeal into the record. 
 
VIII. Board Member Concerns and Communications:  

A. Results of the September 23, 2013 DRB Panel B meeting 
B. Results of the October 28, 2013 DRB Panel B meeting 

 
IX. Staff Communications  
There was none. 
 
X. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 

 
Paula Pinyerd, ABC Transcription for  
Shelley White, Planning Administrative Assistant 

 

Development Review Board Panel A  December 9, 2013 
Minutes       Page 9 of 9 
 



DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
 

MONDAY, JANUARY 13, 2014 
6:30 PM 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VIII.  Public Hearing:     
A. Resolution No. 267. Jory Trail Parking Lot 

Addition and Modification: Otak, Inc – 
Representative for CRP Holland Brenchley 
Estates, LP – Applicant/Owner.  The applicant is 
requesting approval of modifications to the 
approved Stage II final plan and Site Design Review 
plans for Jory Trail Apartments for 40 additional 
parking spaces and modification of 26 existing 
parking spaces to add carports. The subject site is 
located on Tax Lot 100 of Section 14A, T3S, R1W, 
Clackamas County, Oregon. Staff:  Blaise Edmonds 

 
Case Files:     DB13-0044 – Stage II Final Plan modification 

     DB13-0045 – Site Design Review 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 
RESOLUTION NO. 267 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS APPROVING MODIFICATIONS 
TO THE APPROVED STAGE II FINAL PLAN AND SITE DESIGN REVIEW PLANS FOR JORY 
TRAIL APARTMENTS FOR 40 ADDITIONAL PARKING SPACES AND MODIFICATION OF 26 
EXISTING PARKING SPACES TO ADD CARPORTS. THE SUBJECT SITE IS LOCATED ON 
TAX LOT 100 OF SECTION 14A, T3S, R1W, CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON. OTAK, INC – 
REPRESENTATIVE FOR CRP/HOLLAND BRENCHLEY ESTATES, LP – APPLICANT/OWNER. 
 
 WHEREAS, an application, together with planning exhibits for the above-captioned development, 
has been submitted in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 4.008 of the Wilsonville Code, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Staff has prepared staff report on the above-captioned subject dated 
January 6, 2014, and 
 
 WHEREAS, said planning exhibits and staff report were duly considered by the Development 
Review Board Panel A at a scheduled meeting conducted on January 13, 2014, at which time exhibits, 
together with findings and public testimony were entered into the public record, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Development Review Board considered the subject and the recommendations 
contained in the staff report, and 
 
 WHEREAS, interested parties, if any, have had an opportunity to be heard on the subject. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Development Review Board of the City of 
Wilsonville does hereby adopt the staff report dated January 6, 2014, attached hereto as Exhibit A1, with 
findings and recommendations contained therein, and authorizes the Planning Director to issue permits 
consistent with said recommendations for:  
 

DB13-0044 Revised Stage II Final Plan  
DB13-0045  Site Design Review 

 
ADOPTED by the Development Review Board of the City of Wilsonville at a regular meeting thereof 

this 13th day of January, 2014 and filed with the Planning Administrative Assistant on _______________.  
This resolution is final on the l5th calendar day after the postmarked date of the written notice of decision per 
WC Sec 4.022(.09) unless appealed per WC Sec 4.022(.02) or called up for review by the council in 
accordance with WC Sec 4.022(.03). 
 
       
          ______,  
      Mary Fierros Bower Chair, Panel A 
      Wilsonville Development Review Board 
 
Attest: 
 
       
Shelley White, Planning Administrative Assistant 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  267         PAGE 1 



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 1 of 19 
 

 
EXHIBIT A1 

STAFF REPORT 
 

WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD PANEL ‘A’ 

 QUASI - JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 
Revisions to Jory Trail at the Grove Multi-Family 

 
Public Hearing Date:  January 13, 2014 
Date of Report: January 6, 2014 

 
Application Numbers:  Request A: DB13-0044  Revised Stage II Final Plan  

Request B: DB13-0045  Site Design Review  
 

 
Property Owners: Holland Partner Group/Brenchley Estates Partners, L.P. and CRP & Holland 
Brenchley Estates II L.P. 
 
Applicant: Holland Partner Group/Brenchley Estates Partners L.P.  
 
REQUEST: Mr. Jerry Offer of OTAK Inc, acting as agent for the Applicant, requests an 
approval for modifications to the approved Stage II Final Plan and Site Design Review for the 
previously approved plans for the Jory Trail at the Grove project. No changes are proposed to the 
remainder of the previously approved master plan. 
The Applicant proposes to add 13 parking spaces in five different locations throughout the 
existing parking areas. The Applicant also proposes to add an additional parking area in the 
southeastern corner of the site with 27 additional parking spaces. This area currently includes a 
private sidewalk connection to NW Parkway Avenue, lawn area and landscaping. Lastly, the 
Applicant proposes to add 24 carports over existing parking spaces to match carports that have 
already been approved and constructed throughout the project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On May 23, 2011, the Development Review Board approved Brenchley Estates (renamed Jory 
Trail at the Grove) which is a three (3) phase, Stage I Preliminary Plan (Master Plan) for Tax 
Lots 100 and 104 (Resolution No. 210). The approved master plan comprises of 356 residential 
units on Parcels 1 and 2 of the partition plat, divided among 14 apartment buildings (324 units), a 
community building/swimming pool in Phase I, and 30 detached single-family dwellings in 
Phase II. Approved was a significant amount of permanent, private open space within SROZ - 
designated lands, and other open space areas. Jory Trail construction has been completed and the 
30 detached single-family dwellings are under construction by Polygon Homes. In November, 
2013 nine new parking spaces were approved at Jory Trail at the Grove site under a Class II 
Administrative Review. 

 
1 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 2 of 19 
 

 
Comprehensive Plan Designation: Residential 6-7 du/ac. 
 
Current Zone Map Designations: Planned Development Residential– 5 (PDR-5) and SROZ. 

Staff Reviewers: Blaise Edmonds, Amanda Hoffman and Don Walters 

Staff Recommendation: Approve the Revised Stage II Final Plan and Site Design Review with 
Conditions of Approval beginning on page 6. 
 
Project Location: The subject site for the proposed parking expansion at Jory Trail at The 
Grove is located in Brenchely Estates - South which is directly north of the commercial area 
known as Town Center. The site for Jory Trail at the Grove Multi-Family comprises Tax Lot 100 
in Section 14A; T3S R1W; Clackamas County; Wilsonville, Oregon.  
 

 
  
 
  

27 stall parking area 

Carports 

 
2 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 3 of 19 
 

APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA: 
Wilsonville Code Section(s) Description 
Sections 4.008-4.015 Application Process – Findings and 

Conditions 
Section 4.100 Zoning - Purpose 
Section 4.113 (as applicable) Standards for Residential Development in 

Any Zone 
Section 4.118 (as applicable) Standards for All Planned Development 

Zones 
Sections 4.124.5  Planned Development Residential  

(PDR-5) Zone 
  
Section 4.140 Planned Development Regulations 
  Section 4.140.09 Stage II Final Plan 
Section 4.155 Parking  
Section 4.167 Access, Ingress and Egress 
Section 4.171 Protection of Natural Features and Other 

Resources 
Section 4.175 Public Safety and Crime Prevention 
Section 4.176 (as applicable) Landscaping, Screening and Buffering 
Section 4.177 (as applicable) Street Improvement Standards 
Section 4.178 Sidewalk and Pathway Standards 
Section 4.179 Mixed Solid Waste and Recyclables 

Storage in New Multi-Unit Residential 
and Non-Residential Buildings 

Section 4.199 Outdoor Lighting 
Sections 4.300 – 4.320 Underground Utilities 
Sections 4.400 through 4.450 Site Design Review 

 
Other Planning Documents: 
Approved Jory Trail at the Grove 
Apartments  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 4 of 19 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY: 
A detailed project introduction and compliance report in support of the application is provided by 
the applicant found in the Jory Trail Apartments Parking Revisions narrative - Exhibit B1. The 
Applicant’s introduction adequately describes the project, the requested application components, 
and compliance findings regarding applicable review criteria. Except where necessary to 
examine issues identified in this report, staff has relied upon the Applicant’s submittal 
documents and compliance findings, rather than repeat their contents again here. The application 
components are described briefly, below: 
 
Request A – Revised Stage II Final Plan    
   
Section 4.140.09(J)(1) Land Use: The location, design, size and residential uses of the revised 
project, both separately and as a whole, are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and with 
any other applicable plan.   
The applicant proposes to add 13 parking spaces in five different locations throughout the 
existing parking areas. The applicant also proposes to add an additional parking area in the 
southeastern corner of the site with 27 additional parking spaces. This area currently includes a 
private sidewalk connection to NW Parkway Avenue, lawn area and landscaping. Lastly, the 
applicant proposes to add 24 carports over existing parking spaces to match carports that have 
already been approved and constructed throughout the project. 

As demonstrated in findings A1 through A26, the revised Stage II Final Plan for the approved 
apartment complex meets all applicable requirements in Section 4.140.01 through .09 subject to 
compliance with proposed conditions of approval. 

Request B – Site Design Review     
The project design includes landscape and parking revisions, which are evaluated later in this 
report and meets Sections 4.400 through 4.421WC.  

As demonstrated in findings B1 through B23, with conditions of approval referenced therein, the 
revised Site Design Plan can be approved subject to compliance with proposed conditions of 
approval.   

 
  

 
4 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 5 of 19 
 

DISCUSSION TOPICS 
 
Parking: The owners and operators of the Jory Trail Apartments have found that tenants are in 
need of more parking spaces than currently are provided on the site, sometimes resulting in 
tenants parking their vehicles within parking lot drive aisles and a significant number of 
residents’ vehicles being parked on Ash Meadows Road. The Applicant is proposing to provide a 
larger 27 stall parking area on the southeast portion of the property south of building six and 13 
other spaces dispersed throughout the site. Four of the spaces are proposed near the intersection 
of the internal driveway and Parkway Ave. DKS-Scott Mansur has commented that the four 
parking spaces will be in conflict with the right-in, right-out access and should be removed. The 
Applicant has decided to keep these parking spaces as part of the proposal and move forward. 
Staff has made a condition to remove the four spaces on the north and south side of the 
driveway. 
 
Lighting: The Applicant has indicated there are no proposals for lighting for the new parking 
area. If in the event that the applicant decides that lighting is necessary it will require a Class I 
Administrative Review for approval. 
 

 

  
 
 
  

 
5 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 6 of 19 
 

PROPOSED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR REQUESTS ‘A’ & ‘B’ 
 
The applications and supporting documents are hereby adopted for approval with the 
following conditions:  
 
PD = Planning Division  
BD=Building Division 

Request A: DB13-0044  Revised Stage II Final Plan 
Request B: DB13-0045  Site Design Review 
 

 
 
Request A: DB13-0044:  Revised Stage II Final Plan 
On the basis of findings A1 through A26, This action approves the Revised Stage II Final 
Plan submitted with this application, and stamped “Approved Planning Division” unless 
altered by a subsequent Board approval, or with minor revisions approved by the 
Planning Director under a Class I administrative review process.  
    
PDA1. Prior conditions of approval under DB11-0006 et seq. DRB Resolution #210 are still in 

effect 
PDA2.The Applicant/owner shall eliminate a total of four (4) proposed parking spaces near 

the intersection of the internal driveway and Parkway Avenue. 
 

  PDA3. The Applicant shall replace the removed mitigation trees that died from the proposed 27   
               stall parking area, as well as any other trees that are removed due to the construction of  
               the parking areas with 2” caliper trees of similar variety. 
 

Request B – DB13-0045: Site Design Review 
On the basis of findings B1 through B23, this action approves the Site Design Plan 
submitted with this application and stamped “Approved Planning Division” unless 
altered by a subsequent Board approval, or with minor revisions approved by the 
Planning Director under a Class I administrative review process.  
 
PDB1. Prior conditions of approval under DB11-0006 et seq. DRB Resolution #210 are still in 

effect 
 
Building Division Comments: 
BDB1. AERIAL ACCESS.  No open parking spaces adjacent to buildings shall be changed 

into carports without insuring that such carports do not impede fire department aerial 
access to the building or buildings.  This shall be confirmed with the fire marshal 
before the submittal for building permits. 

 
BDB2.     ADA.  All carports that are required by code to include handicap accessible parking        
               spaces shall include those spaces in the number and location required by code 

 
 

 
6 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 7 of 19 
 

MASTER EXHIBIT LIST 
The following exhibits are hereby entered into the public record by the Development Review 
Board in consideration of the application as submitted: 
A1. Staff Report, findings, recommendations and conditions.  
A2. Email documentation from DKS regarding proposed parking spaces near internal driveway and 
Parkway Ave. 
 
Applicant’s Written and Graphic Materials: 
 
B1. Land Use findings including; Code compliance/findings, introduction/project narrative, 

compliance reports to requests A and B, plan sheets.  
B2. Drawings/Plan Sheets, B&W (Full Size sheets Distributed Separately): 

 
Sheet Number Sheet title 
L1.01: Landscape Plan 
L1.02: Landscape Plan 

 
 
Development Review Team 
C1.  Comments from Don Walters-Building Department 
 
Public Testimony: 
Letters (neither for nor Against): None submitted 
Letters (In Favor): None submitted 
Letters (Opposed): None submitted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 8 of 19 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
1. Existing Site Conditions:   

Proposed is a modification to the Stage II Final Plan for Brenchley Estates – South which 
comprises Tax Lot 100. The Applicant has provided a full project description in Exhibit 
B1. The subject property is currently zoned PDR-5.  

Surrounding Development: The adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Compass Direction Existing Use(s) 
North Terrene Apartments 
East Ash Meadows condos  

South Town Center Commercial 
West Interstate-5 

 
Natural Characteristics: Jory Trail at the Grove contains approximately 7.79 acres of 
forested open space designated in the Significant Resource Overlay Zone (SROZ) 
including a drainage-way. A significant number and variety of trees are scattered 
throughout the property.  
 
Streets: The subject Jory Trail at the Grove Multi-Family site is surrounded by SW Ash 
Meadows to the North, SW Parkway Ave to the East and Interstate 5 to the West. 
 
Previous Planning Applications Relevant to the Subject Property: 
 

2. Ordinance No. 509 that revised Wilsonville's Development Code included a citywide change 
from PDR zone to a range of PDR -1 through PDR-7.  

73RZ04:  PDR Zone 
81PC26:  Stage II Final Plan – Addition of 21 units/spaces. 
82DR04: Final Site Plan- 12 additional units 
Ordinance No. 270 and Resolution 84PC01: Amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Map from 
Primary Open Space to Secondary Open Space to allow tree removal. Added - 8 mobile home 
sites. 
DB11-0006  Stage I Preliminary Plan – Brenchley Estates -  South 
DB11-0007  Three Waivers – Parcel 1 
DB11-0010  Stage II Final Plan – Parcel 1 
DB11-0011  Site Design Review – Parcel 1 
DB11-0009  Type ‘C’ Tree Plan – Parcel 1 
DR11-0005  Tentative Partition Plat 
SI11-0001    SROZ Map and SRIR – Parcel 1 
 
     

3. The Applicant has complied with Sections 4.013-4.031 of the Wilsonville Code, said 
sections pertaining to review procedures and submittal requirements. The required public 
notices have been sent and all proper notification procedures have been satisfied. 

 
8 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 9 of 19 
 

4. The statutory 120-day time limit applies to this application. The application was initially 
received on October 9, 2013. Staff conducted a completeness review within the 
statutorily allowed 30-day review period, and advised the Applicant by letter on October 
23, 2013, of missing items. On December 12, 2013, the Applicant submitted additional 
materials intended to complete the application. On December 18, 2013 the application 
was deemed complete. The City must render a final decision for the request, including 
any appeals, by April 17, 2014. 

 
 

CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS 
 
The Applicant’s compliance findings to the applicable land development criteria and 
Comprehensive Plan goals, policies and implementation measures are found in Exhibit B1 
and are hereby incorporated into this staff report as findings for approval. 
 

REQUEST A 
DB13-0044: REVISED STAGE II FINAL PLAN  

Jory Trail at the Grove Parking Addition 
 
The Applicant has provided compliance findings to the applicable criteria (See Exhibit B1). Staff 
concurs with these findings except where otherwise noted.  
The relevant Stage II Final Plan review standards are the following: 

ZONING, Sections 4.100-4.141   

Subsection 4.140.09(J): A planned development permit may be granted by the Development Review 
Board only if it is found that the development conforms to all the following criteria, as well as to the 
planned development regulations in Section 4.140. 
 
Subsection 4.140.09(J) – Stage II Final Plan approval  
Subsection 4.140.09(J)(1-3) stipulates the following criteria for Final Plan approval:  

1. The location, design, size and uses, both separately and as a whole, are consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, and with any other applicable plan, development map or Ordinance 
adopted by the City Council. 

2. That the location, design, size and uses are such that traffic generated by the development 
can be accommodated safely and without congestion in excess of level service "D" defined 
in the highway capacity manual published by the National Highway Research Board on 
existing or immediately planned arterial or collector streets and will, in the case of 
commercial or industrial developments, avoid traversing local streets. 

3. That the location, design, size and uses are such that the residents or establishments to be 
accommodated will be adequately served by existing or immediately planned facilities and 
services. 

 
Additionally, Subsection 4.140.09(J)(1) states: The location, design, size and uses, both separately 
and as a whole, are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and with any other applicable plan, 
development map or Ordinance adopted by the City Council.` 
Subsections 4.140.09(C-F): Stage II Final Plan 

 
9 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 10 of 19 
 

A1. The Applicant’s submittal documents provide sufficient detail to satisfy the requirements 
of Section 4.140.09(C) & (D). These criteria are met. 

 
Comprehensive Plan and Zoning: Planned Development Residential zone 

A2. The subject property is zoned PDR-5. The Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject 
property as Residential 6-7 dwelling units per acre. 

 
Subsection 4.113: Standards Applying to Residential Developments in any Zone: 
 
Subsection 4.113 provides for the required open space in new residential developments. In addition, 
Implementation Measures 4.1.5.d, 4.1.5.j, and 4.1.5.k speak to the Comprehensive Plan’s desire to 
create and conserve open space in the City for specified objectives. 
 
Subsection 4.113.02(A) – Outdoor Recreational Area - Standards Applying To Residential 
Developments In Any Zone. 

(.01) Outdoor Recreational Area in Residential Developments. 
 
A. Purpose. The purposes of the following standards for outdoor recreational area are to provide 

adequate light, air, open space and usable recreational facilities to occupants of each residential 
development. Outdoor recreational area shall be: 

 
l.  Designed with a reasonable amount of privacy balanced between indoor and 

outdoor living areas. Such outdoor recreational area shall be provided consistent 
with the requirements of this Section. 

2.  Recreational areas shall be provided in keeping with the needs of the prospective 
tenants and shall not be located in required yards, parking, or maneuvering areas, 
or areas that are inaccessible. Standards for outdoor recreational areas may be 
waived by the Development Review Board upon 

 finding that the recreational needs of the residents will be adequately met 
 through the use of other recreational facilities that are available in the area. 
3.  In mixed-use developments containing residential uses, the Development 
 Review Board shall establish appropriate requirements for outdoor 
 recreational area, consistent with this Section. 
4.  The Development Review Board may establish conditions of approval to alter the 

amount of required outdoor recreation area, based on findings of projected need for 
the development. Multi-family developments shall provide at least the following 
minimum recreational area: 
a. For ten (10) or fewer dwelling units, 1000 square feet of usable recreation area; 
b. For eleven (11) through nineteen (19) units, 200 square feet per unit; 
c. For twenty (20) or more units, 300 square feet per unit. 

5.   Outdoor recreational area shall be considered to be part of the open space  
 required in the following subsection. 
 

  ( 02) Open Space Area shall be provided in the following manner: 
 A. In all residential subdivisions including subdivision portions of mixed use 
 Development where (1) the majority of the developed square footage is to be in 

residential use or (2) the density of residential units is equal or greater than 3 units 
per acre, at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the area shall be in open space 
excluding streets… 

 
10 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 11 of 19 
 

 
 Multi-family developments shall provide a minimum of 25% open space excluding 

streets… 
 

B.  Open space area required by this Section may, at the discretion of the Development 
Review Board, be protected by a conservation easement or dedicated to the City, 
either rights in fee or easement, without altering the density or other development 
standards of the proposed development… 
 

C.  The Development Review Board may specify the method of assuring the long term 
protection and maintenance of open space and/or recreational areas. Where such 
protection or maintenance are the responsibility of a private party or homeowners' 
association, the City Attorney shall review any pertinent bylaws, covenants, or 
agreements prior to recordation.  

 
A3. Regarding the above criteria, the Stage II Final Plan for the approved Jory Trail at the 

Grove Multi-Family provided the requisite ‘usable’ open space necessary to satisfy the 
minimum acreage requirement for a project of this size. The proposed modification 
includes additional parking. The revised site plan will now provide for a total on-site 
outdoor recreation area of 99,351 square feet which will be 316 square feet per unit, this 
will well serve the outdoor recreation and open space needs of the project’s residents and 
meet the code requirement for outdoor recreation and open space. 

A4. The Jory Trail at the Grove is maintained under one management so CC&R’s and HOA 
are not applicable for this project. 

 

Subsection 4.113(.07) – Fences 

A5. No fences are proposed with this application.  
   
Section 4.155. General Regulations - Parking, Loading and Bicycle Parking. 
 
(.02)  General Provisions:    
 

G. The nearest portion of a parking area may be separated from the use or containing 
structure it serves by a distance not exceeding one hundred (100) feet. 

A6. The proposed parking areas are located within one hundred (100) from the existing 
apartment building, thus this code criterion is satisfied.     

 
J. Parking spaces along the boundaries of a parking lot shall be provided with a sturdy 

bumper guard or curb at least six (6) inches high and located far enough within the 
boundary to prevent any portion of a car within the lot from extending over the 
property line or interfering with required screening or sidewalks. 

 
A7. The submitted plans indicate that bumper guards will be provided along the southern 

boundary of the proposed parking area south of Building 6. This criterion is met. 
 

K. All areas used for parking and maneuvering of cars shall be surfaced with asphalt, 
concrete, or other surface, such as "grasscrete" in lightly-used areas, that is found by 

 
11 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 12 of 19 
 

the City Engineer to be suitable for the purpose. In all cases, suitable drainage, meeting 
standards set by the City Engineer, shall be provided.  

 
A8. Asphalt/concrete surface is proposed for parking and drives. This code criterion is 

satisfied.   
 

L. Artificial lighting which may be provided shall be so limited or deflected as not to shine 
into adjoining structures or into the eyes of passers-by. 

 
A9. The City passed an outdoor lighting ordinance (Dark Sky), Ordinance #649, which 

implemented Section 4.199.50 into the Development Code. The Applicant has indicated 
to staff that additional lighting is not proposed with the proposed revised site 
improvements. 

 
N. Compact car spaces. 

A10. The applicant is not proposing any compact car spaces. 
 

O. Where off-street parking areas are designed for motor vehicles to overhang beyond 
curbs, planting areas adjacent to said curbs shall be increased to a minimum of seven 
(7) feet in depth. This standard shall apply to a double row of parking, the net effect of 
which shall be to create a planted area that is a minimum of seven (7) feet in depth. 

A11. The Revised Landscape Plan Sheet L1.01 shows the proposed planting areas are at least 
seven (7) feet in depth. This provision is therefore satisfied. In addition, consistent with 
Section 4.155(.02)J. 
 
(.03) Minimum and Maximum Off-Street Parking Requirements: 

 
A. Parking and loading or delivery areas shall be designed with access and maneuvering 

area adequate to serve the functional needs of the site and shall: 
 

A12. Vehicle access to the site are at two locations along Ash Meadows Road and along SW 
Parkway Avenue. On-site circulation within the site was reviewed by the City’s Traffic 
Consultant DKS & Associates with the original approval of the development. In 
reviewing the revised proposal, DKS & Associates is recommending that the total of four 
parking spaces proposed on the south and north of the access drive to Parkway Avenue 
be eliminated due to the narrow width of the driveway which makes it unsafe to backup. 
(See Exhibit A2) This shall be a condition of approval for the Applicant to eliminate the 
total of four (4) parking spaces near the intersection of the internal driveway and Parkway 
Avenue. 

 
A13. Pedestrian access to the site will be taken from sidewalks and paths within Brenchley 

Estates and sidewalks at Ash Meadows Road and a public street connecting to SW 
Parkway Avenue meeting code.  

 
B.  Parking and loading or delivery areas landscaping requirements  

 
A14. Parking Lot Landscaping as a Percentage: The site was previously approved that 10% 

 
12 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 13 of 19 
 

of the parking lot will be landscaped meeting code.  
 
A15. Parking Areas Visible from the Right-of-Way: The proposed landscape treatment will 

provide adequate screening of the parking area along Parkway Ave. 
 
A16. Parking Areas Visible from Adjacent Properties: The proposed parking areas would 

not be visible from the adjacent properties.  
 
A17.  Landscape Tree Planting Areas: The Applicant has provided a Landscape Plan L1.01 & 

L1.02 demonstrating that the proposed planting areas are a minimum of eight (8) feet in 
width. The code further requires that the Applicant provide one (1) tree per (6) parking 
spaces for parking areas over 200 spaces. The site will have a total of 300 surface parking 
spaces including the construction of the proposed 40 spaces, which at one tree per six 
spaces would require fifty (50) trees. According to the submitted plans, the Applicant is 
proposing approximately fifty-nine (59) trees, meeting the required minimum.     

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
Subsection 4.155(.03)B.4  Parking for ADA 
 
A18. The Applicant is proposing to install 40 on-site parking spaces. The Building Division 

regulates required ADA parking. The Applicant is not proposing any new ADA parking 
spaces. 

 
Subsection 4.155.(03)B.5.: Connection of Parking Areas 
 

A19. The Applicant is providing all of the needed parking on-site. This provision will be 
satisfied subject to the DRB approving the proposed parking plan.  

 
Subsection 4.155.(03)B.6-8 and Table 5: Parking Standards.  
 
A20. In Exhibit B1 the Applicant has provided compliance findings relative to this provision. 

Jory Trail at the Grove provides 527 parking spaces for 324 apartment units currently, 
plus an addition of nine parking spaces approved through a Class I Administrative 
process and the total of 40 new spaces with this proposal brings the total to 576, which is 
105 spaces above the parking minimum. There is no code standard for maximum allowed 
parking spaces. 
 

Subsection 4.177.01(E): Access drives and lanes. 
 
A21. Ash Meadows Road and the existing access at SW Parkway serving the Jory Trail 

Apartments meet City’s access management guidelines and will serve the project site.  
 
Section 4.175: Public Safety and Crime Prevention 
 
A22. The Clackamas County Sheriff Department and Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue 

reviewed the original approval of the apartment building development and found that this 
provision is satisfied. 

 
13 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 14 of 19 
 

 
Subsection 4.177.01(B): Sidewalk Requirements  

  
A23. The approved pedestrian circulation plan is found on the Revised Landscape Sheet L1.01  

of Exhibit B1 meeting this criterion. The Applicant is proposing a new 5’ crushed rock 
pedestrian path connection from Building 6 to the proposed 27 stall parking area to the 
south. This new connection will provide for safe pedestrian access to the new parking 
area. 
 

A24. The proposed pedestrian paths and linkage are consistent with the City's pedestrian-
friendly policies.  

Subsection 4.140.09(J)(3) Public Facilities stipulates, “That the location, design, size and uses are 
such that the residents or establishments to be accommodated will be adequately served by existing 
or immediately planned facilities and services.” 
 
A25. The proposed revised project has available to it, or will be required to make available to 

it, adequate facilities to serve the project.  
 
Subsection 4.140(.09)(I): Duration of Stage II Approval 

A26.    Approval of the revised Stage II Final Plan will expire two years after the approval date, 
if substantial development has not occurred on the property in that time. The DRB may 
grant three (3) one-year extensions to this approval upon findings of good faith efforts to 
develop the property per this code criterion. 

 
REQUEST B 

DB13-0045: SITE DESIGN REVIEW  
Jory Trail at the Grove Parking Addition  

 
Subsection 4.125.18(P)(1): An application for approval of a Site Design Plan shall be subject to the 
provisions of Section 4.421. 
 
The Applicant has provided compliance findings to the applicable criteria (See Exhibit B1). Staff 
concurs with these findings except where otherwise noted.  
 
Section 4.421: Site and Design Review - Criteria and Application of Design Standards  
 
(.01)   The following standards shall be utilized by Board in reviewing the plans, drawings, sketches 

and other documents required for Site Design Review. These standards are intended to 
provide a frame of reference for the applicant in the development of site and building plans 
as well as a method of review for the Board. These standards shall not be regarded as 
inflexible requirements. They are not intended to discourage creativity, invention or 
innovation. The specification of one or more particular architectural styles is not included 
in these standards.  

  
A. Preservation of Landscape. The landscape shall be preserved in its natural state, insofar as 
practicable, by minimizing tree and soils removal, and any grade changes shall be in keeping with 
the general appearance of neighboring developed areas. 

 
14 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 15 of 19 
 

 
B1. The landscape is not in its natural state. The original conditions of approval are still in 

place under the previously approved DRB Resolution No. 210 
 
B. Relation of Proposed Buildings to Environment. Proposed structures shall be located and 
designed to assure harmony with the natural environment, including protection of steep slopes, 
vegetation and other naturally sensitive areas for wildlife habitat an shall provide proper buffering 
from less intensive uses in accordance with Sections 4.171 and 4.139 and 4.139.5. The achievement 
of such relationship may include the enclosure of space in conjunction with other existing buildings 
or other proposed buildings and the creation of focal points with respect to avenues of approach, 
street access or relationships to natural features such as vegetation or topography. 
 
B2. The purpose of this revised Site Design Plan is to provide additional parking and carports 

for the residents at Jory Trail at the Grove. 
 
C.  Drives, Parking and Circulation. With respect to vehicular and pedestrian circulation, including 
walkways, interior drives and parking, special attention shall be given to location and number of 
access points, general interior circulation, separation of pedestrian and vehicular traffic, and 
arrangement of parking areas that are safe and convenient and, insofar as practicable, do not 
detract from the design of proposed buildings and structures and the neighboring properties. 
 
B3. The proposed revised project is large enough to provide an internal circulation system for 

transportation options (automobiles, bicyclists and pedestrians) meeting code. 
Furthermore, the proposed plan includes a pedestrian pathway to link the new parking 
area south of Building 6 to the building to allow for safer pedestrian circulation. 

 
Parking Analysis: 
 
B4. See findings A18 through A23.  
 
Section 4.176: Landscaping. Screening, and Buffering 
 
(.01) Purpose 
 
B5. See the Applicant’s compliance response in Exhibit B1. The response indicates 

approximately 33.5% of the site is set aside for landscaping. The plan proposes to reduce 
the provided landscaping by 14,222 square feet which does not reduce the provided the 
landscape by even a percentage. Therefore, the project will continue to comply with this 
criterion. 

 
(.02) Landscaping and Screening Standards 

C. General Landscaping Standard. 
1. Intent 
2. Required Materials 

a. Where the landscaped area is less than 30 feet deep, one tree is required for 
every 30 linear feet.   

 

 
15 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 16 of 19 
 

b. Where the landscaped area is 30 feet deep or greater, one tree is required for 
every 800 square feet and two high shrubs or three low shrubs are required for 
every 400 square feet. 

D. Low Screen Landscaping Standard 
 
B6. The Applicant has indicated on plan sheet L1.01 the installation of a low screen standard 

including Kinnikinnick planted 24” o.c. which is a low growing evergreen shrub that 
does not exceed 6 inches in height and a single row of Pink India Hawthorn planted 36” 
o.c. which is a flowering evergreen shrub that grows between 3 and 7 feet tall with a 6 to 
10 foot spread. Street trees have already been planted by the Applicant/Owner along 
Parkway which provide for the tree requirement of the low screen standard. Therefore the 
project will comply with this criterion. 

 
4.176(.03) Landscape Area 
 
B7. This section requires that not less than 15% of the total lot area be landscaped with 

plants. The proposed reduction of landscaping includes 14,222 square feet of 
landscaping. According to the information submitted the proposal calls for 33.5% 
landscaping, thereby exceeding this requirement.     

 
(.04) Buffering and Screening 
 
B8. The Buffering and Screening section requires that all intensive developments be screened 

and buffered from less intensive developments and that roof and ground mounted HVAC 
equipment and outdoor storage areas be adequately screened from off-site view. The 
applicant is not proposing any new buildings. 

  
(.06) Plant Materials. 
 
B9.     The Applicant has specified that the proposed shrubs will meet the two-gallon container  

requirement and will have a 10”-12” spread. The proposed Kinnikinnick is in one gallon 
containers and meets the requirements for ground covers. Trees are required to be well-
branched and typical of their type as described in current American Association of 
Nurserymen (AAN) Standards and shall be balled and burlapped. The Applicant’s 
proposal satisfies the above related code criteria applying to the size and height of trees. 

 
(.07) Installation and Maintenance. 

B10. Plant materials shall be installed to current industry standards and shall be properly 
staked to assure survival.  Support devices (guy wires, etc.) shall not be allowed to 
interfere with normal pedestrian or vehicular movement. Maintenance of landscaped 
areas is the on-going responsibility of the property owner.  Any landscaping installed to 
meet the requirements of this Code, or any condition of approval established by a City 
decision-making body acting on an application, shall be continuously maintained in a 
healthy, vital and acceptable manner.  Plants that die are to be replaced in kind, within 
one growing season, unless appropriate substitute species are approved by the City.  
Failure to maintain landscaping as required in this Section shall constitute a violation of 

 
16 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 17 of 19 
 

the City Code for which appropriate legal remedies, including the revocation of any 
applicable land development permits, may result. A condition of approval has been added 
addressing maintenance. 
 
Staff is recommending a condition of approval requiring a permanent, built-in, irrigation  
system with an automatic controller located at the maintenance building. Either a spray or  
drip irrigation system, or a combination of the two, may be specified. Excessive irrigation  
must be avoided next to retained/existing trees. With proposed condition PDB2 this can  
be accomplished.   

 
(.10) Completion of Landscaping. 

B11. The installation of plant materials may be deferred for a period of time specified by the 
Board or Planning Director acting on an application, in order to avoid hot summer or cold 
winter periods, or in response to water shortages.  In these cases, only a temporary permit 
shall be issued.  No final Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until an adequate 
bond or other security is posted for the completion of the landscaping, and the City is 
given written authorization to enter the property and install the required landscaping, in 
the event that the required landscaping has not been installed.  The form of such written 
authorization shall be submitted to the City Attorney for review.  The landscaping 
proposed for the perimeter plantings are required to be installed and use of the parking 
area shall not be granted until the approved landscaping is completely installed. 
    

Section 4.199 Outdoor Lighting 
Section 4.199.40: Lighting Systems Standards for Approval 
 

(.01) Non-Residential Uses and Common Residential Areas.  

A. All outdoor lighting shall comply with either the Prescriptive Option or the 
Performance Option below.   

 
B12. The proposal is for an addition of parking areas and carports. Pursuant to the Lighting 

Overlay Zone Map the subject site is within Lighting Overlay Zone LZ-2. The Applicant 
has indicated and staff agrees that no changes to the lighting are proposed. The original 
conditions of approval are still in place under the previously approved DRB Resolution. 

D. Curfew.  All prescriptive or performance based exterior lighting systems shall be 
controlled by automatic device(s) or system(s) that: 

a) Initiate operation at dusk and either extinguish lighting one hour after close or at 
the curfew times according to Table 5; or  

b) Reduce lighting intensity one hour after close or at the curfew time to not more 
than 50% of the requirements set forth in Table 2 unless waived by the DRB due to 
special circumstances; and  

c) Extinguish or reduce lighting consistent with a) and b) above on Holidays.   

  The following are exceptions to curfew: 
i. Exception 1:  Building Code required lighting. 
ii. Exception 2:  Lighting for pedestrian ramps, steps and stairs. 

 
17 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 18 of 19 
 

iii. Exception 3:  Businesses that operate continuously or periodically after 
curfew. 

 
B13. The Applicant has indicated and staff agrees that no changes to the lighting are proposed. 

The original conditions of approval are still in place under the previously approved DRB 
Resolution 210. 

 
Section 4.421. Criteria and Application of Design Standards.   
 

(.01)  The following standards shall be utilized by the Board in reviewing the plans, drawings, 
sketches and other documents required for Site Design Review. These standards are 
intended to provide a frame of reference for the applicant in the development of site and 
building plans as well as a method of review for the Board.  These standards shall not be 
regarded as inflexible requirements. They are not intended to discourage creativity, 
invention and innovation.  The specifications of one or more particular architectural 
styles is not included in these standards. (Even in the Boones Ferry Overlay Zone, a 
range of architectural styles will be encouraged.) 

 
A. Preservation of Landscape.   

 
B14. The Applicant has provided findings to demonstrate that any soils removal will be kept to 

a minimum and there are numerous existing trees on this site. There are no major grade 
changes that will affect the neighboring sites. Grading will be limited to preparation of 
the parking areas and drives.  

 
B. Relation of Proposed Buildings to Environment.   
 

B15. The project development area is not within a Significant Resource Overlay Zone (SROZ). 
 

C. Drives, Parking and Circulation.   
 

B16. Exhibit B1 provides compliance findings regarding drives, parking and circulation. The 
Preliminary Development Plan further illustrates on-site and off-site pedestrian 
circulation paths meeting code. In addition, the Applicant is proposing a pedestrian path 
connecting the new 27 stall parking area with Building Six to provide for safe ped 
circulation. 

 
D. Surface Water Drainage.   
 

B17. The Applicant has indicated and staff agrees that no changes to the stormwater facilities 
are proposed. The original conditions of approval are still in place under the previously 
approved DRB Resolution. 

 
E. Utility Service.   
 

B18. The Applicant has indicated and staff agrees that no changes to the utility services are 
proposed. The original conditions of approval are still in place under the previously 
approved DRB Resolution 210. 

 
18 of 47



DB13-0044& DB13-0045  Revised Stage II Final Plan & Site Design Review  Staff Report   Exhibit A1 
Development Review Board Panel A January 13, 2014  Page 19 of 19 
 

F. Advertising Features.   
 

B19. The Applicant is not proposing any new signs.  
  

G. Special Features.   
 
B20. The Applicant is not proposing any special features.  

 
(.02)  The standards of review outlined in Sections (a) through (g) above shall also apply to all 

accessory buildings, structures, exterior signs and other site features, however related to 
the major buildings or structures. 

 
B21. The Applicant is proposing twenty-four carports to match the existing carports on site as 

shown on the Landscape Plan Sheet L1.02 and are proposed to meet all applicable criteria 
listed above. 

 
Section 4.430. Location, Design and Access Standards for mixed Solid Waste and Recycling Areas 
 

(.01)  The following locations, design and access standards for mixed solid waste and recycling 
storage areas shall be applicable to the requirements of Section 4.179 of the Wilsonville 
City Code. 

 
(.02)  Location Standards: 
 

B22. The Applicant has indicated and staff agrees that no changes to the mixed solid waste and 
recycling storage areas are proposed. 

 
Section 4.179 Mixed Solid Waste and Recyclables Storage in New Multi-Unit Residential and Non-
Residential Buildings. 
 
(.06) Specific Requirements for Storage Areas 
 

 (.07) The applicant shall work with the City’s franchised garbage hauler to ensure that site plans 
provide adequate access for the hauler’s equipment and that storage area is adequate for 
the anticipated volumes, level of service and any other special circumstances which may 
result in the storage area exceeding its capacity.  The hauler shall notify the City by letter of 
their review of site plans and make recommendations for changes in those plans pursuant to 
the other provisions of this section. 

 
B23. The Applicant has indicated and staff agrees that no changes to the mixed solid waste and 

recycling storage areas are proposed.  

 
19 of 47



 
20 of 47

swhite
Stamp



 
21 of 47

swhite
Stamp



 
22 of 47



 
23 of 47



 
24 of 47



 
25 of 47



 
26 of 47



 
27 of 47



 
28 of 47



 
29 of 47



 
30 of 47



 
31 of 47



 
32 of 47



 
33 of 47



 
34 of 47



 
35 of 47



 
36 of 47



 
37 of 47



 
38 of 47



 
39 of 47



 
40 of 47



 
41 of 47



 
42 of 47



 
43 of 47



 
44 of 47



 
45 of 47



 
46 of 47



 
47 of 47

swhite
Stamp



swhite
Stamp





DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
 

MONDAY, JANUARY 13, 2014 
6:30 PM 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VIII.  Public Hearing:     

B. Resolution No. 268.   Boones Ferry Pointe – The 
Human Bean Drive-up Coffee Kiosk:   SFA 
Design Group and CB Anderson Architects – 
Representatives for Wilsonville Devco LLC – 
Applicant/Owner.  The applicant is requesting 
approval of a Stage II Final Plan revision, Site 
Design Review and Master Sign Plan revision and 
Sign Waiver for development of a new 450 square 
foot drive-thru coffee kiosk at the corner of 95th 
Avenue and Boones Ferry Road. The subject site is 
located on Tax Lot 302 of Section 2DB, T3S, R1W, 
Washington County, Oregon.   Staff:  Daniel Pauly 

 
Case Files:   DB13-0046 – Stage II Final Plan Revision 

   DB13-0047 – Site Design Review 
   DB13-0048 – Master Sign Plan Revision  
                          and Sign Waiver 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 
RESOLUTION NO. 268 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS APPROVING A STAGE II FINAL PLAN 
REVISION, SITE DESIGN REVIEW AND MASTER SIGN PLAN REVISION AND SIGN WAIVER FOR 
DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW 450 SQUARE FOOT DRIVE-THRU COFFEE KIOSK AT THE CORNER OF 
95TH AVENUE AND BOONES FERRY ROAD. THE SUBJECT SITE IS LOCATED ON TAX LOT 302 OF 
SECTION 2DB, T3S, R1W, WASHINGTON COUNTY, OREGON.  SFA DESIGN GROUP AND CB 
ANDERSON ARCHITECTS – REPRESENTATIVES FOR WILSONVILLE DEVCO LLC – 
APPLICANT/OWNER. 
 
 WHEREAS, an application, together with planning exhibits for the above-captioned development, 
has been submitted in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 4.008 of the Wilsonville Code, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Staff has prepared staff report on the above-captioned subject dated 
January 6, 2014, and 
 
 WHEREAS, said planning exhibits and staff report were duly considered by the Development 
Review Board Panel A at a scheduled meeting conducted on January 13, 2014, at which time exhibits, 
together with findings and public testimony were entered into the public record, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Development Review Board considered the subject and the recommendations 
contained in the staff report, and 
 
 WHEREAS, interested parties, if any, have had an opportunity to be heard on the subject. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Development Review Board of the City of 
Wilsonville does hereby adopt the staff report dated January 6, 2014, attached hereto as Exhibit A1, with 
findings and recommendations contained therein, and authorizes the Planning Director to issue permits 
consistent with said recommendations for:  
 
DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048 Class 3 Stage II Final Plan Revision, Site Design Review, and 
Master Sign Plan Revision with Sign Waiver to replace a previously-approved but un-built multi-tenant 
commercial building at Boones Ferry Pointe with a drive-thru coffee kiosk and associated 
improvements.. 
 

ADOPTED by the Development Review Board of the City of Wilsonville at a regular meeting thereof 
this 13th day of January, 2014 and filed with the Planning Administrative Assistant on _______________.  
This resolution is final on the l5th calendar day after the postmarked date of the written notice of decision per 
WC Sec 4.022(.09) unless appealed per WC Sec 4.022(.02) or called up for review by the council in 
accordance with WC Sec 4.022(.03). 
 
       
          ______,  
      Mary Fierros Bower Chair, Panel A 
      Wilsonville Development Review Board 
 
Attest: 
 
       
Shelley White, Planning Administrative Assistant 

RESOLUTION NO.  268         PAGE 1 



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 1 of 50 

Exhibit A1 

STAFF REPORT 

WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION 
 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD PANEL ‘A’ 

QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 

STAFF REPORT 

HEARING DATE January 13, 2014 

DATE OF REPORT: January 6, 2014 

 

APPLICATION NOS.: DB13-0046 Stage II Final Plan Revision 

 DB13-0047 Site Design Review 

 DB13-0048 Master Sign Plan Revision and Sign Waiver 
 

REQUEST/SUMMARY: The Development Review Board is being asked to review a revised 

Stage II Final Plan, Site Design Review, and revised Master Sign Plan for the development of a 

new 450 square foot drive-thru coffee shop to replace an approved but un-built 3,150 square foot 

multi-tenant commercial building at the corner of 95
th

 Avenue and Boones Ferry Road in North 

Wilsonville.  
 

LOCATION: The proposed coffee shop location is on the southeast corner of the 95th Avenue/ 

Boones Ferry Road intersection near Elligsen Road/I-5 Interchange The property is specifically 

known as  Tax Lot 0302, Section 2DB, Township 3 South, Range 1 West, Willamette Meridian, 

City of Wilsonville, Washington County, Oregon 
 

OWNER/APPLICANT: Josh Veentjer 

 Wilsonville Devco LLC 
 

APPLICANT’S REPS.: Ben Altman 

SFA Design Group 

 

Craig Anderson 

CB Anderson Architects 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP DESIGNATION: Commercial 
 

ZONE MAP CLASSIFICATION:  PDC (Planned Development Commercial) 
 

STAFF REVIEWERS: Daniel Pauly AICP, Associate Planner 

 Steve Adams PE, Development Engineering Manager 

 Don Walters, Building Plans Examiner 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve with conditions the requested revised Stage II 

Final Plan, Site Design Review request, and revised Master Sign Plan. 
 

 
1 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 2 of 50 

APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA 
 

Section 4.008 Application Procedures-In General 

Section 4.009 Who May Initiate Application 

Section 4.010 How to Apply 

Section 4.011 How Applications are Processed 

Section 4.014 Burden of Proof 

Section 4.031 Authority of the Development Review Board 

Subsection 4.035 (.04) Site Development Permit Application 

Subsection 4.035 (.05) Complete Submittal Requirement 

Section 4.110 Zones 

Section 4.116 Standards Applying to Commercial Development 

in All Zones 

Section 4.118 Standards Applying to Planned Development 

Zones 

Section 4.131 Planned Development Commercial Zone (PDC) 

Section 4.140 Planned Development Regulations 

Section 4.154 On-site Pedestrian Access and Circulation 

Section 4.155 Parking, Loading, and Bicycle Parking 

Sections 4.156.01 through 4.156.11 Sign Regulations 

Section 4.167 Access, Ingress, and Egress 

Section 4.171 Protection of Natural Features and Other 

Resources 

Section 4.175 Public Safety and Crime Prevention 

Section 4.176 Landscaping, Screening, and Buffering 

Section 4.177 Street Improvement Standards 

Section 4.179 Mixed Solid Waste and Recyclables Storage 

Sections 4.199.20 through 4.199.60 Outdoor Lighting 

Sections 4.300 through 4.320 Underground Utilities 

Sections 4.400 through 4.450 as 

applicable 

Site Design Review 

 

  

 
2 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 3 of 50 

Vicinity Map 

 

 
 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
 

Approved Stage I Master Plan/Site History 
 

The subject property is part of the Edwards Business Center Industrial Master Plan. This master 

plan envisioned a variety of industrial and commercial uses. The Master Plan designated the 

subject site as commercial, but did not specify the type of commercial use. Previously the City 

received an application for an office building on the site, which was never built. In March 2013 

the Development Review Board approved an application to construct a fast-food restaurant and a 

multi-tenant commercial building consistent with the designation of the property in the Master 

Plan. The restaurant building has been built, but the property owner determined they were unable 

to find appropriate tenants and finance the commercial building. The applicant is now requesting 

to replace the multi-tenant commercial building portion of the development with a drive-thru 

coffee kiosk which remains consistent with the Stage I Master Plan commercial designation. 
 

Stage II Final Plan (DB13-0046) 
 

The Stage II Final Plan looks at the function and overall aesthetics of the proposed development, 

including traffic, parking, and circulation. 
 

The proposed revised master plan includes a 450 square foot drive-thru coffee kiosk, and 

associated site improvements including parking, circulation, and landscaping. The coffee kiosk 

development replaces a multi-tenant commercial building approved by the DRB in March 2013 

 
3 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 4 of 50 

at the same time the adjacent Carl‟s Jr. restaurant was approved. The development site sits just 

north of the recently completed Carl‟s Jr. restaurant at the southeast corner of SW 95
th

 Avenue 

and SW Boones Ferry Road. The kiosk building has a flat roof with a parapet to screen view of 

mechanical equipment. The north end of the building has a tower featuring the sign bands. A 

drive through lane wraps around the east, north, and west side of the kiosk and the adjoining 

patio and parking area. Parking is to the south and southeast.  
 

Vehicle access to the coffee kiosk is via an existing shared driveway with Holiday Inn, Chevron, 

and Carl‟s Jr. 
 

The Modified Stage II Final Plan for Boones Ferry Point, which will include Carl‟s Jr. and the 

proposed coffee kiosk, proposes approximately 15569 square feet of landscaping, 37 parking 

spaces (35 required), maneuvering and circulations areas, and mixed solid waste and recyclables 

storage. The total gross area of the site covered by the Stage II Master Plan is 55,605 square feet 

or 1.28 acres. 
 

Site Design Review (DB13-0047) 
 

Architectural Design 
 

In the application for the original Boones Ferry Point (DB12-0074 et. seq.) the applicant 

explained how the design goal was to identify with the general environment of commercial 

development at Argyle Square and along Wilsonville Road while also adding a unique 

personality to the development and proper identity to the planned tenants. Smaller scale wood-

frame structures using traditional exterior materials intended to reinforced their location in 

Wilsonville‟s small town setting. The approved buildings featured brick, horizontal lap siding, 

and board and batten materials. The proposed coffee kiosk follows this same architectural theme 

previously proposed and approved. The building features brick around the base, with a mix of 

lap siding and horizontal siding on the main body of the building. The tower design has similar 

shape as the Carl‟s Jr. building towers, but uses different material and colors. The Carl‟s Jr. 

building and the proposed coffee kiosk incorporate similar architectural elements, but have 

enough differences to be unique and complementary.  
 

Proposed Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk Rendering 

 
 

 
4 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 5 of 50 

Landscape and Hardscape Design 
 

In the design of Boones Ferry Pointe previously approved by the DRB a planter and plaza are 

featured at the north of the site to acknowledge the gateway at a prominent intersection on the 

northern edge of the City. The remainder of the landscaping is typical of parking lots and 

commercial areas in Wilsonville. In the proposed revised plan the planter and gateway sign with 

flag remain, but the plaza has been replaced with a patio area adjacent to the coffee kiosk. The 

remainder of the area around the coffee kiosk accommodates the drive-thru lane and otherwise 

remains typical of parking lots and commercial areas in Wilsonville. 
 

Landscape Plan Previously Approved by DRB 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLAZA 

 
5 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 6 of 50 

Proposed Landscape Plan 

 
 

 

Master Sign Plan and Sign Area Waiver (DB13-0048) 
 

Building Signs 
 

All three facades of the coffee kiosk where signs are proposed are eligible for building signs, 

with the allowed area based on the length of the different facades. The building signs will be wall 

mounted internally illuminated logo cabinets, like Carl‟s Jr., or individual internally illuminated 

channel letters. The signs will be appropriately placed on the buildings either centered in 

architectural features or centered above doors or windows. The sign design and placement is 

similar to other commercial retail developments in Wilsonville including Argyle Square and Old 

Town Square. Due to the narrow length of the north façade of the building, the applicant is 

requesting a waiver to allow a sign of the same size as the east and west facades, providing 

consistency on each of the three facades of the northern portion of the building, which are very 

similar architecturally. 
 

Proposed Building Signs 

 

 
6 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 7 of 50 

DISCUSSION TOPICS: 
 

Bicycle Parking 
 

While the required number of bicycle parking spaces is provided, a couple requirements for 

bicycle parking are not met. The requirements not met include the spacing between bike parking 

and the kiosk building and the distance of the bike parking from the pedestrian service window. 

Condition of Approval PDA 2 requires the bicycle parking to be relocated within the plaza area 

or otherwise modified to meet these requirements. 
 

Existing Hardscape and Landscape Improvements 
 

Most of the hardscape and landscape for the proposed development has already been installed. 

This was done by the developer at their own risk. While, staff recommends approval, with 

modifications, of the hardscape and landscape as installed, the Development Review Board has 

full authority to require changes to the hardscape and landscape as if none had yet been installed. 
 

Tables and Other Furnishings for Patio Area 
 

The applicant has not provided information on tables or other furnishings for the patio area 

adjacent to the coffee kiosk. While none are currently proposed, it is understood furnishings will 

be placed in this area. Condition of Approval PDB 9 ensures the design of these furnishings will 

be durable and match or complement to the neighboring building thus helping to meet the site 

design review standards. 
 

Restrictive Covenant Legal Dispute 

 

As described in Exhibit D1 a legal dispute is ongoing regarding whether a restrictive covenant on 

the property prevents the operation of the proposed coffee kiosk. This is a private matter to be 

resolved between the parties. Staff does not see a reason to delay City approval with conditions 

of the proposed development. See letter regarding this matter from Barbara Jacobson, Assistant 

City Attorney, Exhibit C3. 

  

 
7 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 8 of 50 

CONCLUSION AND CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 

Staff has reviewed the applicant‟s analysis of compliance with the applicable criteria.  The Staff 

report adopts the applicant‟s responses as Findings of Fact except as noted in the Findings. Based 

on the Findings of Fact and information included in this Staff Report, and information received 

from a duly advertised public hearing, staff recommends that the Development Review Board 

approve the proposed application (DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048) with the following 

conditions: 
 

REQUEST A: DB13-0046 STAGE II FINAL PLAN REVISION 

Planning Division Conditions:  

PDA 1. The approved final plan schedule shall control the issuance of all building permits 

and shall restrict the nature, location and design of all uses.  Minor changes to the 

approved final development plan may be approved by the Planning Director 

through administrative review pursuant to Section 4.030 if such changes are 

consistent with the purposes and general character of the plan. All other 

modifications shall be processed in the same manner as the original application and 

shall be subject to the same procedural requirements. 

PDA 2. The applicant shall modify or relocate the bicycle parking spaces to meet the 

following standards identified in Subsection 4.155 (.04) B. while continuing to 

meet all other applicable standards: 

 An aisle at least 5 feet wide shall be maintained behind all required bicycle 

parking to allow room for bicycle maneuvering. 

 Each space be located within 30 feet of the pedestrian service window. 

REQUEST B: DB13-0047 SITE DESIGN REVIEW 

Planning Division Conditions:  

PDB 1. Construction, site development, and landscaping shall be carried out in substantial 

accord with the Development Review Board approved plans, drawings, sketches, 

and other documents. Minor revisions may be approved by the Planning Director 

through administrative review pursuant to Section 4.030. See Findings B3.  

PDB 2. All landscaping required and approved by the Board shall be installed prior to 

issuance of occupancy permits, unless security equal to one hundred and ten 

percent (110%) of the cost of the landscaping as determined by the Planning 

Director is filed with the City assuring such installation within six (6) months of 

occupancy.  "Security" is cash, certified check, time certificates of deposit, 

assignment of a savings account or such other assurance of completion as shall 

meet with the approval of the City Attorney.  In such cases the developer shall also 

provide written authorization, to the satisfaction of the City Attorney, for the City 

or its designees to enter the property and complete the landscaping as approved.  If 

the installation of the landscaping is not completed within the six-month period, or 

within an extension of time authorized by the Board, the security may be used by 

the City to complete the installation.  Upon completion of the installation, any 

portion of the remaining security deposited with the City will be returned to the 

applicant. See Finding B9. 

 
8 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 9 of 50 

PDB 3. The approved landscape plan is binding upon the applicant/owner.  Substitution of 

plant materials, irrigation systems, or other aspects of an approved landscape plan 

shall not be made without official action of the Planning Director or Development 

Review Board, pursuant to the applicable sections of Wilsonville‟s Development 

Code. See Finding B10. 

PDB 4. All landscaping shall be continually maintained, including necessary watering, 

weeding, pruning, and replacing, in a substantially similar manner as originally 

approved by the Board, unless altered as allowed by Wilsonville‟s Development 

Code. See Findings B11 and B12. 

PDB 5. The following requirements for planting of shrubs and ground cover shall be met: 

 Non-horticultural plastic sheeting or other impermeable surface shall not be 

placed under landscaping mulch. 

 Native topsoil shall be preserved and reused to the extent feasible. 

 Surface mulch or bark dust shall be fully raked into soil of appropriate depth, 

sufficient to control erosion, and shall be confined to areas around plantings.   

 All shrubs shall be well branched and typical of their type as described in 

current AAN Standards and shall be equal to or better than 2-gallon containers 

and 10” to 12” spread.  

 Shrubs shall reach their designed size for screening within three (3) years of 

planting. 

 Ground cover shall be equal to or better than the following depending on the 

type of plant materials used:  gallon containers  spaced at 4 feet on center 

minimum, 4" pot spaced 2 feet on center minimum, 2-1/4" pots spaced at 18 

inch on center minimum. 

 No bare root planting shall be permitted. 

 Ground cover shall be sufficient to cover at least 80% of the bare soil in required 

landscape areas within three (3) years of planting.   

 Appropriate plant materials shall be installed beneath the canopies of trees and 

large shrubs to avoid the appearance of bare ground in those locations. 

 Compost-amended topsoil shall be integrated in all areas to be landscaped, 

including lawns. 

See Finding B22. 

PDB 6. Plant materials shall be installed to current industry standards and be properly 

staked to ensure survival. Plants that die shall be replaced in kind, within one 

growing season, unless appropriate substitute species are approved by the City. See 

Finding B27. 

PDB 7. Outdoor lighting associated with the coffee kiosk use shall be dimmed at 10:00 

p.m. by an automatic system. See Finding B38. 

PDB 8. All non-exempt luminaires shall be limited to down lighting. Non-exempt 

luminaires, except luminaire DD, shall be mounted and aimed consistent with their 

fully shielded classification. See Finding B35 and B37. 

PDB 9. Furnishings for the patio area shall be of durable materials that can withstand 

multiple years of outdoor exposure and remain in a like-new condition. Furnishings 

for the patio area shall be colors matching or complementary to the coffee kiosk 

building. Furnishings are not approved to have any signage. Final design and 

 
9 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 10 of 50 

placement of furnishings shall be approved by the Planning Division through the 

Class I Administrative Review process. 

REQUEST C DB13-0048 MASTER SIGN PLAN REVISION AND SIGN WAIVER 

PDC 1. Non-exempt signs shall be issued a Class I Sign Permit through the Planning 

Division prior to installation to ensure compliance with the approved Master Sign 

Plan. 

PDC 2. This action only changes the components of the Master Sign Plan explicitly noted. 

All other aspects of the Master Sign Plan and Conditions of Approval of Case File 

DB12-0076 remain in effect. 

PDC 3. The illuminated directional signs at internal circulation drive intersections shall be 

limited to six (6) square feet. See Finding C24. 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FROM THE ENGINEERING AND BUILDING 

DIVISIONS FOR ALL REQUESTS  
 

The following Conditions of Approval are provided by the Engineering and Building Divisions 

of the City‟s Community Development Department which have authority over development 

approval. A number of these Conditions of Approval are not related to land use regulations under 

the authority of the Development Review Board or Planning Director. Only those Conditions of 

Approval related to criteria in Chapter 4 of Wilsonville Code and the Comprehensive Plan, 

including but not limited to those related to traffic level of service, site vision clearance, and 

concurrency, are subject to the Land Use review and appeal process defined in Wilsonville Code 

and Oregon Revised Statutes and Administrative Rules. Other Conditions of Approval are based 

on City Code chapters other than Chapter 4, state law, federal law, or other agency rules and 

regulations. Questions or requests about the applicability, appeal, exemption or non-compliance 

related to these other Conditions of Approval should be directed to the City Division with 

authority over the relevant portion of the development approval.  
 

Engineering Division Conditions: 

Specific Comments:  

PF 1. Engineering Public Facilities Conditions of Approval (PF conditions) for DB12-

0074 and DB12-0075 remain in effect for this project accept as further modified 

below. 

PF 2. At the request of Staff, DKS Associates completed a Trip Generation memo dated 

September 5, 2013 revising a previously completed Carl‟s Jr. Traffic Impact Study 

that was completed in May 2012.  The proposed use is expected to generate 13 

fewer new primary trips than the previously approved use. The project is hereby 

limited to no more than the following impacts. 
 

Estimated New PM Peak Hour Trips 117 

PF 3. Stormwater detention and storm water quality for this site will be handled via the 

stormwater facility constructed with the Boones Ferry Pointe project. 

PF 4. The project shall connect to the existing Storm lateral constructed with the Boones 

Ferry Pointe project. 

PF 5. The project shall connect to the existing Sanitary Sewer stub constructed with the 

 
10 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 11 of 50 

Boones Ferry Pointe project. 

PF 6. The project shall connect to the existing Water service constructed with the Boones 

Ferry Pointe. project. 
 

Building Division Conditions: 

BD 1.    ACCESSIBLE.  At least one of the walk-up service windows shall be accessible. 
 

MASTER EXHIBIT LIST: 
 

The following exhibits are hereby entered into the public record by the Development Review 

Board as confirmation of its consideration of the application as submitted. This is the exhibit list 

that includes exhibits for Planning Case Files DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048. 
 

A1. Staff report and findings (this document) 

A2. Staff‟s public hearing presentation slides (not available until public hearing) 

B1.  Applicant‟s Notebook: 

 1. Notice of Complete Application Dated December 9, 2013 

 2. Response to Letter of Incomplete Application Dated December 4, 2013 

 3. Notice of Incomplete Application Dated November 20, 2013 

 4. Application Form Signed by Josh Ventjeer, Managing Member of Wilsonville Devco 

LLC 

 5. Compliance Report 

 6. DKS Traffic Memo 

 7. Site Plans Approved by DRB in Case Files DB12-0074 through DB12-0076 

 8. Signage (Proposed) 

 9. Lighting Detail & Photometrics (Proposed) 

 10. Revised Site & Architectural Plans (Proposed) 

B2.  Plan Sets and Architectural Drawings: 

 Color Architectural Renderings (Proposed) 

 C105 Previous Approved Grading Plan (DB12-0074 through DB12-0076) 

 A1.0 Architectural Site Plan (Proposed) 

 DD101 Composite Utility Plan (Proposed) 

 DD102 Grading Plan (Proposed) 

 L2.0 Landscape Planting Plan (Proposed) 

 L1.0 Landscape Irrigation Plan (Proposed) 

 A-1 Coffee Kiosk Floor Plan and Upper Wall Framing Plan from Pacific Mobile 

 A-3 Coffee Kiosk Wall Elevations from Pacific Mobile 

 E-1 Coffee Kiosk Electrical Plan from Pacific Mobile 

 SE1.0 Photometric Site Plan (Proposed) 

 Sign Drawings  

B3.  Materials Boards for Coffee Kiosk (available at public hearing) 

C1. Engineering Division Comments and Conditions 

C2. Building Division Comments and Conditions 

C3. January 3, 2014 Letter from Barbara Jacobson, Assistant City Attorney, to Alec Laidlaw 

RE: The Human Bean Coffee Store Legal Dispute 

D1. Written Testimony Received January 3, 2014 on behalf of Garry Lapoint 

 
11 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 12 of 50 

January 3, 2014 email from Terra Burns, Laidlaw and Laidlaw Paralegal, to Daniel Pauly, 

Associate Planner 

 January 3, 2014 Letter from Alec Laidlaw to Daniel Pauly, Associate Planner 

 Copy of Washington County Circuit Court Case No. C138125CV Defendants‟ ORCP 21 

Motions 

 Copy of Washington County Circuit Court Case No. C138125CV Declaration of Garry L. 

Lapoint in Support of Defendants‟ ORCP 21 Motions 

 Copy of Washington County Circuit Court Case No. C138125CV Defendants‟ Counsel‟s 

Certificate of Compliance (UTCR 5.010) 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 

1. The statutory 120-day time limit applies to this application. The application was received on 

November 12, 2013.  On November 20, 2013, staff conducted a completeness review within 

the statutorily allowed 30-day review period, and, on December 4, 2013, the Applicant 

submitted new materials. Additional materials were submitted on December 7, 2013. On 

December 9, 2013 the application was deemed complete. The City must render a final 

decision for the request, including any appeals, by April 8, 2014. 
 

2. Surrounding land uses are as follows: 
 

Compass Direction Zone: Existing Use: 

North:  PDI 95
th
/Boones Ferry Intersection/ Riverwood 

Industrial Campus 

East:  PDC Chevron/Boones Ferry Rd. 

South:  PDC Holiday Inn 

West:  PDC 95
th
 Avenue/AGC Center 

 

3. Prior land use actions include: 
 

Edwards Business Center Industrial Park Plat-Stage I 

97DB28 Stage II, Site Design Review, LaPoint Center 

DB06-0041, DB06-0043, DB06-0057, DB06-0042 Stage II Final Plan, Site Design Review, 

Waiver to Building Height, Master Sign Plan for Brice Office Building (Expired) 

DB12-0074 through DB12-0076 Stage II Final Plan, Site Design Review, and Master Sign 

Plan for fast food restaurant and multi-tenant commercial building. 

DB13-0027 Site Design Review for accent lighting on fast food restaurant. 
 

4. The applicant has complied with Sections 4.013-4.031 of the Wilsonville Code, said sections 

pertaining to review procedures and submittal requirements. The required public notices have 

been sent and all proper notification procedures have been satisfied. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
12 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 13 of 50 

CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS:  
 

NOTE: Pursuant to Section 4.014 the burden of proving that the necessary findings of fact can be 

made for approval of any land use or development application rests with the applicant in the 

case. 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

Section 4.008 Application Procedures-In General 
 

Review Criteria: This section lists general application procedures applicable to a number of types of 

land use applications and also lists unique features of Wilsonville‟s development review process. 
Finding: These criteria are met.  

Explanation of Finding: The application is being processed in accordance with the applicable 

general procedures of this Section. 
 

Section 4.009 and Subsection 4.140 (.03) Who May Initiate Application and Ownership 
 

Review Criterion: “Except for a Specific Area Plan (SAP), applications involving specific sites may be 

filed only by the owner of the subject property, by a unit of government that is in the process of acquiring 

the property, or by an agent who has been authorized by the owner, in writing, to apply.” “The tract or 

tracts of land included in a proposed Planned Development must be in one (1) ownership or control or the 

subject of a joint application by the owners of all the property included.“ 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The application has been submitted on behalf of the property owner, 

Wilsonville Devco LLC. The application form is signed by Josh Veentjer, Managing Member.  
 

Subsection 4.010 (.02) Pre-Application Conference 
 

Review Criteria: This section lists the pre-application process 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: A pre-application conference was held on August 22, 2013 in 

accordance with this subsection. 
 

Subsection 4.011 (.02) B. Lien Payment before Application Approval 
 

Review Criterion: “City Council Resolution No. 796 precludes the approval of any development 

application without the prior payment of all applicable City liens for the subject property. Applicants shall 

be encouraged to contact the City Finance Department to verify that there are no outstanding liens. If the 

Planning Director is advised of outstanding liens while an application is under consideration, the Director 

shall advise the applicant that payments must be made current or the existence of liens will necessitate 

denial of the application.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: No applicable liens exist for the subject property. The application can 

thus move forward. 
 

 

 

 

 
13 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 14 of 50 

Subsection 4.035 (.04) A. General Site Development Permit Submission Requirements 
 

Review Criteria: “An application for a Site Development Permit shall consist of the materials specified 

as follows, plus any other materials required by this Code.” Listed 1. through 6. j. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant has provided all of the applicable general submission 

requirements contained in this subsection. 
 

Section 4.110 Zoning-Generally 
 

Review Criteria: “The use of any building or premises or the construction of any development shall be 

in conformity with the regulations set forth in this Code for each Zoning District in which it is located, 

except as provided in Sections 4.189 through 4.192.” “The General Regulations listed in Sections 4.150 

through 4.199 shall apply to all zones unless the text indicates otherwise.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: This proposed development is in conformity with the applicable 

zoning district and general development regulations listed in Sections 4.150 through 4.199 have 

been applied in accordance with this Section. 
  

 
14 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 15 of 50 

REQUEST A: DB13-0046 STAGE II FINAL PLAN REVISION 
 

Planned Development Regulations 
 

Subsection 4.140 (.01) Purpose of Planned Development Regulations 
 

A1. Review Criterion: The proposed Stage II Final Plan shall be consistent with the Planned 

Development Regulations purpose statement. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Based on the information provided by the applicant in their 

narrative, staff is of the professional opinion that the purpose of the planned development 

regulations is met by the proposed Stage II Final Plan. 
 

Subsections 4.140 (.02) and (.05) Planned Development Lot Size and Permit Process 
 

A2. Review Criteria: “Planned Development may be established on lots which are suitable for and of 

a size to be planned and developed in a manner consistent with the purposes and objectives of 

Section 4.140.” “Any site designated for development in the Comprehensive Plan may be 

developed as a Planned Development, provided that it is zoned „PD.‟  All sites which are greater 

than two (2) acres in size, and designated in the Comprehensive Plan for commercial, residential, 

or industrial use shall be developed as Planned Developments, unless approved for other uses 

permitted by the Development Code.”   
 

 “All parcels of land exceeding two (2) acres in size that are to be used for residential, commercial 

or industrial development, shall, prior to the issuance of any building permit: 

1. Be zoned for planned development; 

2. Obtain a planned development permit; and 

3. Obtain Development Review Board, or, on appeal, City Council approval.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The development site is less than two (2) acres. However, it is 

previously been zoned for Planned Development. The property is designated for 

commercial development in the Comprehensive Plan, and is zoned Planned Development 

Commercial. The property is of sufficient size and will be developed as a planned 

development in accordance with this subsection. 
 

Subsection 4.140 (.04) Professional Design Team Required for Planned Developments 
 

A3. Review Criteria: “The applicant for all proposed Planned Developments shall certify that the 

professional services of the appropriate professionals have been utilized in the planning process for 

development. One of the professional consultants chosen by the applicant shall be designated to be 

responsible for conferring with the planning staff with respect to the concept and Explanation of 

the plan.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant‟s compliance narrative lists the appropriate 

professionals involved in the planning and permitting process. Ben Altman of SFA Design 

Group has been designated the coordinator for the planning portion of the project.  
 

 

 

 
15 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 16 of 50 

Stage II Final Plan Submission Requirements and Process 
 

Subsection 4.140 (.09) A. Timing of Submission 
 

A4. Review Criterion: “Unless an extension has been granted by the Development Review Board, 

within two (2) years after the approval or modified approval of a preliminary development plan 

(Stage I), the applicant shall file with the City Planning Department a final plan for the entire 

development or when submission in stages has been authorized pursuant to Section 4.035 for the 

first unit of the development” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: A previous Stage I approval identified the subject property as a 

future commercial stage. A Stage II Final Plan was approved consistent with the previous 

Stage I Master Plan in March 2013. This application requests revision of the Stage II Final 

plan. 
 

Subsection 4.140 (.09) C. Conformance with Stage I and Additional Submission Requirements 
 

A5. Review Criteria: “The final plan shall conform in all major respects with the approved 

preliminary development plan, and shall include all information included in the preliminary plan 

plus the following:” listed 1. through 6. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant states, and staff concurs, that the Stage II plans 

substantially conforms to the Stage I Master plan. The applicant has provided the required 

drawings and other documents showing all the additional information required by this 

subsection. 
 

Subsection 4.140 (.09) D. Stage II Final Plan Detail 
 

A6. Review Criterion: “The final plan shall be sufficiently detailed to indicate fully the ultimate 

operation and appearance of the development or phase of development.”   
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant has provided sufficiently detailed information to 

indicate fully the ultimate operation and appearance of the development, including a 

detailed site plan, landscape plans, floor plans, elevation drawings, and material 

information. 
 

Subsection 4.140 (.09) E. Submission of Legal Documents 
 

A7. Review Criterion: “Copies of legal documents required by the Development Review Board for 

dedication or reservation of public facilities, or for the creation of a non-profit homeowner‟s 

association, shall also be submitted.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: No additional legal documentation is required for dedication or 

reservation of public facilities. 
 

 

 

 

 

 
16 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 17 of 50 

Subsection 4.140 (.09) J. Planned Development Permit Requirements 
 

A8. Review Criteria: “A planned development permit may be granted by the Development Review 

Board only if it is found that the development conforms to all the following criteria, as well as to 

the Planned Development Regulations in Section 4.140:” listed J. 1. through 3. Includes traffic 

level of service requirements. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Proposed is a coffee kiosk in an area designated for commercial 

in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed use is at a corner and clustered with commercial 

uses similarly serving the travelling public, thus being part of a commercial center rather 

than strip commercial development. As demonstrated in the DKS Traffic Memo in the 

applicant‟s notebook, Exhibit B1, specifically page 2 of 3 of the memo, the required traffic 

level of service is being maintained. All utilities and services are available to serve the 

development. 
 

Commercial Development in Any Zone 
 

Subsection 4.116 (.01) Commercial Development to be in Centers and Complexes 
 

A9. Review Criterion: “Commercial developments shall be planned in the form of centers or 

complexes as provided in the City‟s Comprehensive Plan.  As noted in the Comprehensive Plan, 

Wilsonville‟s focus on centers or complexes is intended to limit strip commercial development.” 

Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The approved Boones Ferry Pointe commercial development is 

in the form of a center clustered at an intersection with other commercial development. 
 

Subsection 4.116 (.05) All Commercial Activity to be Completely Enclosed 
 

A10. Review Criteria: “All businesses, service or processing, shall be conducted wholly within a 

completely enclosed building; except for:” Listed A. through G. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: All commercial activity other than exempt activities will be 

within in the proposed buildings. The only exceptions from the list given noted by the 

applicant are off-street parking for customers and employees, and outdoor seating. Staff 

notes there is the possibility as well for temporary outside sales. 
 

Subsection 4.116 (.07) Uses Limited to those Meeting Industrial Performance Standards 
 

A11. Review Criteria: “Uses shall be limited to those which will meet the performance standards 

specified in Section 4.135(.05), with the exception of 4.135(.05)(M.)(3.).” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The proposed development facilitates commercial uses meeting 

these performance standards. It is understood that all uses will need to continue to meet 

these standards over time. 
 

Subsection 4.116 (.08) Vision Clearance Standards for Corner Lots 
 

 
17 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 18 of 50 

A12. Review Criteria: “Corner lots shall conform to the vision clearance standards set forth in Section 

4.177.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Vision clearance has been reviewed by the City‟s Engineering 

Division and the City‟s Public Works standards for vision clearance are met. 
 

Subsection 4.116 (.10) Commercial Development Generally 
 

A13. Review Criteria: This subsection lists a number of requirements for commercial development 

such as setback, lot size, lot coverage, and street frontage requirements. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: All the applicable standards listed in this subsection are met. 
 

Subsection 4.116 (.14) B. Prohibited Uses 
 

A14. Review Criteria: “Any use that violates the performance standards of Section 4.135(.05), other 

than 4.135(.05)(M.)(3.) is prohibited within commercial developments.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: No uses prohibited by this subsection are proposed. 
 

Standards Applying in All Planned Development Zones 
 

Subsection 4.118 (.01) Additional Height Guidelines 
 

A15. Review Criterion: “In cases that are subject to review by the Development Review Board, the 

Board may further regulate heights as follows:  

A. Restrict or regulate the height or building design consistent with adequate provision of 

fire protection and fire-fighting apparatus height limitations. 

B. To provide buffering of low density developments by requiring the placement of three or 

more story buildings away from the property lines abutting a low density zone. 

C. To regulate building height or design to protect scenic vistas of Mt. Hood or the 

Willamette River.” 

Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Staff does not recommend the Development Review Board 

require a height less than the applicant proposes as the proposed height provides for fire 

protection access, does not abut a low density zone, and does not impact scenic views of 

Mt. Hood or the Willamette River. 
 

Subsection 4.118 (.03) Waivers 
 

A16. Review Criteria: “Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.140 to the contrary, the 

Development Review Board, in order to implement the purposes and objectives of Section 4.140, 

and based on findings of fact supported by the record may” waive a number of standards as listed 

in A. through E.  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: No planned development waivers have been requested by the 

applicant or are necessary to approve the application as proposed. 
 

 

 
18 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 19 of 50 

Subsection 4.118 (.03) E. Other Requirements or Restrictions 
 

A17. Review Criteria: “Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.140 to the contrary, the 

Development Review Board, in order to implement the purposes and objectives of Section 4.140, 

and based on findings of fact supported by the record may adopt other requirements or restrictions, 

inclusive of, but not limited to, the following:” Listed 1. through 12. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: No additional requirements or restrictions are recommended 

pursuant to this subsection. 
 

Subsection 4.118 (.04) Effect of Determination of Compliance and Conditions of Approval on 

Development Cost 
 

A18. Review Criteria: “The Planning Director and Development Review Board shall, in making their 

determination of compliance in attaching conditions, consider the effects of this action on 

availability and cost.  The provisions of this section shall not be used in such a manner that 

additional conditions, either singularly or cumulatively, have the effect of unnecessarily increasing 

the cost of development.  However, consideration of these factors shall not prevent the Board from 

imposing conditions of approval necessary to meet the minimum requirements of the 

Comprehensive Plan and Code.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: It is staff‟s professional opinion that the determination of 

compliance or attached conditions do not unnecessarily increase the cost of development, 

and no evidence has been submitted to the contrary. 
 

Subsection 4.118 (.05) Requirements to Set Aside Tracts for Certain Purposes 
 

A19. Review Criteria: “The Planning Director, Development Review Board, or on appeal, the City 

Council, may as a condition of approval for any development for which an application is submitted, 

require that portions of the tract or tracts under consideration be set aside, improved, conveyed or 

dedicated for the following uses:” Recreational Facilities, Open Space Area, Easements.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: No additional tracts are being required for the purposes given. 
 

 

 

Subsection 4.118 (.09) Habitat Friendly Development Practices 
 

A20. Review Criteria: “To the extent practicable, development and construction activities of any lot 

shall consider the use of habitat-friendly development practices, which include:  

A. Minimizing grading, removal of native vegetation, disturbance and removal of native 

soils, and impervious area; 

B. Minimizing adverse hydrological impacts on water resources, such as using the practices 

described in Part (a) of Table NR-2 in Section 4.139.03, unless their use is prohibited by an 

applicable and required state or federal permit, such as a permit required under the federal Clean 

Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§1251 et seq., or the federal Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. §§300f et 

seq., and including conditions or plans required by such permit; 

C. Minimizing impacts on wildlife corridors and fish passage, such as by using the practices 

described in Part (b) of Table NR-2 in Section 4.139.03; and  

 
19 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 20 of 50 

D. Using the practices described in Part (c) of Table NR-2 in Section 4.139.03.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: As stated by the applicant and adopted by DRB for the previous 

Stage II approval, “The site has previously been rough graded and there is no significant 

native vegetation. The site does not contain any SROZ and no fish or wildlife habitats are 

associated with this property. The site has been designed consistent with the Habitat-

Friendly practices. The storm system design provides for on-site water quality and volume 

control which protects the downstream wetland area south of the AGC building.” The 

proposal does not significantly alter compliance as previously found. 
 

Planned Development Commercial Zone 
 

Subsection 4.131 (.01) A. 1. Uses Typically Permitted 
 

A21. Review Criteria: This subsection lists the uses that are typically permitted in the PDC Zone. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The proposal replaces an approved but un-built multi-tenant 

commercial building with drive-thru coffee kiosk which is an allowed service 

establishment use.  
 

Subsection 4.131 (.02) Prohibited Uses 
 

A22. Review Criteria: This subsection lists the prohibited uses in the PDC Zone. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant has not proposed any prohibited uses for the site. 
 

Subsection 4.131 (.03) 1. Block and Access Standards: Connectivity for Different Modes 
 

A23. Review Criteria: “The Development Review Board shall determine appropriate conditions of 

approval to assure that adequate connectivity results for pedestrians, bicyclists, and motor vehicle 

drivers.  Consideration shall be given to the use of public transit as a means of meeting access 

needs.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: No new blocks are proposed, and the proposed development 

proposes to use the existing shared private driveway on 95
th

 Avenue partially on the 

subject property. A development agreement has been agreed upon between the owner of 

the subject property, neighboring properties, and the City ensuring appropriate access from 

the shared driveway. 
 

On-site Pedestrian Access and Circulation 
 

Subsection 4.154 (.01) B. 1. Continuous Pathway System 
 

A24. Review Criterion: “A pedestrian pathway system shall extend throughout the development site 

and connect to adjacent sidewalks, and to all future phases of the development, as applicable.” 

Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant has provided a network a network of pathways 

from the proposed location of the coffee kiosk to support a continuous pathway system 

 
20 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 21 of 50 

throughout the site. This includes two connections to the 95
th

 Avenue sidewalk which then 

connects to Carl‟s Jr. and Holiday Inn as well as a pathway connection to the east to 

provide access to parking, trash enclosures, and the Chevron property. See sheet A1.0 in 

Exhibit B2. 
 

Subsection 4.154 (.01) B. 2. Safe, Direct, and Convenient Pathways 
 

A25. Review Criteria: “Pathways within developments shall provide safe, reasonably direct, and 

convenient connections between primary building entrances and all adjacent parking areas, 

recreational areas/playgrounds, and public rights-of-way and crosswalks based on all of the 

following criteria: 

a. Pedestrian pathways are designed primarily for pedestrian safety and 

convenience, meaning they are free from hazards and provide a reasonably 

smooth and consistent surface.  

b.  The pathway is reasonably direct. A pathway is reasonably direct when it 

follows a route between destinations that does not involve a significant amount of 

unnecessary out-of-direction travel. 

c. The pathway connects to all primary building entrances and is consistent with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements. 

 d. All parking lots larger than three acres in size shall provide an internal bicycle 

and pedestrian pathway pursuant to Section 4.155(.03)(B.)(3.)(d.).” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding:  

 All proposed pathways are of smooth and consistent concrete and no hazards are 

evident on the site plan.  

 All proposed pathways are reasonably direct. The path from Carl‟s Jr. to the 95
th

 

Avenue sidewalk then across to the coffee kiosk is reasonably direct. The path from 

the intersection of 95
th

 Avenue/Boones Ferry is reasonably direct. A direct path is 

provided from the parking stalls and trash enclosure serving the coffee kiosk. 

 Where required, pathways meet ADA requirements or will be required to by the 

building code. 

 The parking lot is not larger than 3 acres in size. 
 

Subsection 4.154 (.01) B. 3. Vehicle/Pathway Separation 
 

A26. Review Criterion: “Except as required for crosswalks, per subsection 4, below, where a pathway 

abuts a driveway or street it shall be vertically or horizontally separated from the vehicular lane. 

For example, a pathway may be vertically raised six inches above the abutting travel lane, or 

horizontally separated by a row of bollards.”  
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: All pathways affected by this review are separated consistent 

with this subsection. Staff notes pathways marked during previous phases of development 

do not meet this standard. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
21 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 22 of 50 

Subsection 4.154 (.01) B. 4. Crosswalks 
 

A27. Review Criterion: “Where a pathway crosses a parking area or driveway, it shall be clearly 

marked with contrasting paint or paving materials (e.g., pavers, light-color concrete inlay between 

asphalt, or similar contrast).”  
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant has proposed crosswalks meeting this standard. 
 

 

Subsection 4.154 (.01) B. 5. Pathway Width and Surface 
 

A28. Review Criteria: “Primary pathways shall be constructed of concrete, asphalt, brick/masonry 

pavers, or other durable surface, and not less than five (5) feet wide. Secondary pathways and 

pedestrian trails may have an alternative surface except as otherwise required by the ADA.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Primary pathways are the required width. The pathway from the 

parking area/trash enclosure near Chevron is not a primary pathway and is allowed to be 

less than five (5) feet in width. 
 

Subsection 4.154 (.01) B. 6. Signs for Pathways 
 

A29. Review Criteria: “All pathways shall be clearly marked with appropriate standard signs.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: No pathways requiring signs are proposed. 
 

Parking and Loading 
 

Subsection 4.155 (.02) General Parking Provisions 
 

A30. Review Criteria: This subsection lists a number of general provisions for parking. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant has provided sufficient information demonstrating 

compliance with the provisions in this subsection applicable to State II Final Plan review. 

Among the information provided are parking calculations on sheet A1.0. of Exhibit B2. 

Staff specifically points out the following: 

 In relation to provision B. all parking areas are accessible and usable for parking 

 In relation to provisions D. the provided parking meets the sum of the minimum 

parking for the fast food restaurant and the coffee kiosk.  

 In relation to provision J. a note on sheet A1.0 of Exhibit B2 states this requirement 

will be met. 

 In relation to provision K. the parking area is paved and provided with adequate 

drainage. See Sheets A1.0 and DD102 in Exhibit B2. 

 In relation to provision L. the parking lot lighting is fully shielded as to not shine into 

adjoining structures or the eyes of passerby‟s. 

 In relation to provision N. 6 compact parking spaces are proposed, which is less than 

forty (40) percent of the proposed parking spaces. They are shown appropriately 

marked on Sheet A1.0 of Exhibit B2. 
 

 
22 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 23 of 50 

Subsection 4.155 (.03) A. Functional Design of Parking, Loading, and Delivery Areas  
 

A31. Review Criteria: “Parking and loading or delivery areas shall be designed with access and 

maneuvering area adequate to serve the functional needs of the site and shall: 

1. Separate loading and delivery areas and circulation from customer and/or employee 

parking and pedestrian areas.  Circulation patterns shall be clearly marked. 

2. To the greatest extent possible, separate vehicle and pedestrian traffic.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Sheet DD5 “Proposed Truck Turning Movements” of Exhibit B2 

of DB12-0074 through 0076 demonstrates sufficient access and maneuvering areas for 

delivery trucks, both for the Chevron fuel and Carl‟s Jr. and the coffee kiosk. Staff notes 

fuel off-loading, and restaurant other commercial delivery parking are in the same area of 

the site separating these operations from the general employee and customer parking and 

pedestrian areas.  The access and maneuvering areas for passenger vehicle parking areas 

appears sufficient providing adequate space for two-way travel. The applicant states in 

their compliance narrative in their notebook, Exhibit B1, that “care has been given to the 

extent practicable to separate vehicle and pedestrian traffic.” Staff has reviewed the site 

plan and found no code supported site changes to further separate pedestrian and vehicle 

traffic. 
 

Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 1.-3. Parking Area Landscaping 
 

A32. Review Criteria: “Parking and loading or delivery areas shall be landscaped to minimize the 

visual dominance of the parking or loading area, as follows:” Listed 1. through 3. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: As shown in the planting plans (applicant‟s sheet L1.0), the 

required amount of landscaping and trees are provided.  
 

Subsection 4.155 (.03) C. Parking and Loading Areas-Safe and Convenient Access 
 

A33. Review Criterion: “Be designed for safe and convenient access that meets ADA and ODOT 

standards.  All parking areas which contain ten (10) or more parking spaces, shall for every fifty 

(50) standard spaces., provide one ADA-accessible parking space that is constructed to building 

code standards, Wilsonville Code 9.000.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The required ADA space for the coffee kiosk is provided. 
 

Subsection 4.155 (.03) D. Parking Connectivity and Efficient On-site Circulation  
 

A34. Review Criteria: “Where possible, parking areas shall be designed to connect with parking areas 

on adjacent sites so as to eliminate the necessity of utilizing the public street for multiple accesses 

or cross movements.  In addition, on-site parking shall be designed for efficient on-site circulation 

and parking.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The proposed development adds to an existing commercial 

center that includes a fuel station, convenience market, sit down restaurant, convention 

center, and hotel. The proposed uses as well as the existing Chevron and Holiday Inn share 

a common driveway off 95
th

 Avenue and their access and parking areas are interconnected. 

 
23 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 24 of 50 

Joint use of many the access and maneuvering areas is covered in a Development 

Agreement. Two factors commonly considered to determine such efficiency include 

proximity of parking to likely destinations, and direct vehicle and pedestrian paths between 

destinations with limited choke points. To the extent practicable parking is provided close 

to the coffee kiosk for short, efficient pedestrian trips after parking. Where parking is 

further away towards Chevron a direct pedestrian path is provided to the coffee kiosk. 

Multiple pedestrian accesses from the public sidewalk are provided, including ones 

providing the most direct path from the sidewalk to business entrances. All vehicles enter 

the site through a shared driveway with Holiday Inn and Chevron. While this could 

become a choke point, care has been taken to design the driveway for optimal performance 

to minimize traffic delays, as reflected in the Development Agreement. Straight drive 

aisles and multiple access points allow for direct vehicle travel within the site.  
 

Subsection 4.155 (.03) G. Parking Minimum and Maximum 
 

A35. Review Criteria: “Tables 5, below, shall be used to determine the minimum and maximum 

parking standards for various land uses.  The minimum number of required parking spaces shown 

on Tables 5 shall be determined by rounding to the nearest whole parking space.”   

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: As shown in the table below, the proposed parking is consistent 

with Table 5: Parking Standards. Staff notes the parking count differs from the submitted 

drawings and narrative, Exhibits B1 and B2, and this finding corrects the inaccurate counts 

provided in those documents. 
 

Use 
Floor 
Area Min Max Min Max Provided 

Fast food (with drive-thru) 2,867 9.9 per 1,000 
SF 

14.9 per 1000 
SF 29 43  

Coffee Kiosk 450 9.9 per 1,000 
SF 

14.9 per 1000 
SF 4 7  

Standard Spaces      29 

Compact Spaces (40% Max)    -- 18 6 

Total Non-ADA Spaces    33 50 35 

ADA Spaces 
      

2  -- 2 

   
Total Parking Spaces 37 

 

Subsection 4.155 (.04) A. Bicycle Parking-General Provisions 
 

A36. Review Criteria: This subsection lists general provisions for bicycle parking, listed 1. through 4., 

including required number of spaces.   
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: A minimum of four (4) spaces are required for the drive-thru 

coffee kiosk, and four (4) are provided.  
 

 
24 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 25 of 50 

Subsection 4.155 (.04) B. Bicycle Parking-Standards 
 

A37. Review Criteria: This subsection lists standards for required bicycle parking, listed 1. through 5., 

including size, access aisle size, spacing between racks, anchoring of lockers and racks, and 

location standards. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: As shown on sheet A1.0 of Exhibit B2 each of the 4 required 

parking stalls exceeds the minimum dimensions of 2 feet by 6 feet. There is sufficient 

space to use the bicycle racks without obstructions. Bicycle racks will be securely 

fastended. Five (5) feet of spacing is not provided between the bicycle racks and the kiosk. 

The bicycle racks are further than 30 feet from the primary entrance, which in this case 

staff understands to be the service window open to pedestrians. Condition of Approval 

PDA 2 will ensure bicycle parking is placed to meet all requirements of this subsection 

including the spacing from the building and distance from the service window. 
 

Subsection 4.155 (.05) Minimum Off-street Loading Requirements 
 

A38. Review Criteria: This subsection defines the requirements for loading berths including when 

loading berths are required and size requirements. 
Finding: These criteria are not applicable. 

Explanation of Finding: No loading berths are required for commercial uses of the 

proposed floor area. 
 

Subsection 4.155 (.06) Carpool and Vanpool Parking Requirements 
 

A39. Review Criteria: This subsection defines the requirements for carpool and vanpool parking. 
Finding: These criteria are not applicable. 

Explanation of Finding: No carpool or vanpool parking is required for commercial 

parking lots of the proposed size.  
 

Section 4.167 Access, Ingress, and Egress 
 

A40. Review Criterion: “Each access onto streets or private drives shall be at defined points as 

approved by the City and shall be consistent with the public's health, safety and general welfare.  

Such defined points of access shall be approved at the time of issuance of a building permit if not 

previously determined in the development permit.”   
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The access points for the development site are existing and 

approved by the City. No change in access is proposed. 
 

Natural Features 
 

Section 4.171 Protection of Natural Features and Other Resources 
 

A41. Review Criteria: This section provides for the protection of a number of natural features and 

other resources including: general terrain preparation, hillsides, trees and wooded areas, high 

voltage powerline easements and rights of way and petroleum pipeline easements, earth movement 

hazard areas, soil hazard areas, historic resources, and cultural resources. 

 
25 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 26 of 50 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: None of the resources listed in this section exist on the site or 

will be foreseeably negatively impacted by the development. 
 

Public Safety and Crime Prevention 
 

Subsection 4.175 (.01) Design to Deter Crime and Ensure Public Safety 
 

A42. Review Criterion: “All developments shall be designed to deter crime and insure public safety.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant asserts, and staff concurs, that attention has been 

given to site design to deter crime and allow natural surveillance. Staff has no evidence 

that the proposed development would otherwise negatively impact public safety. 
 

Subsection 4.175 (.02) Addressing and Directional Signing 
 

A43. Review Criteria: “Addressing and directional signing shall be designed to assure identification 

of all buildings and structures by emergency response personnel, as well as the general public.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The design of the site provides for appropriate addressing and 

directional signage to assure easy identification.  
 

Subsection 4.175 (.03) Surveillance and Police Access 
 

A44. Review Criterion: “Areas vulnerable to crime shall be designed to allow surveillance.  Parking 

and loading areas shall be designed for access by police in the course of routine patrol duties.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The parking and loading areas are easily assessable to law 

enforcement. 
 

Subsection 4.175 (.04) Lighting to Discourage Crime 
 

A45. Review Criterion: “Exterior lighting shall be designed and oriented to discourage crime.” 

Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: While exterior lighting has been minimized it was previously 

found to discourage crime and continues to do so. 
 

Landscaping Standards 
 

Subsection 4.176 (.01) Purpose of Landscape, Screening, and Buffering 
 

A46. Review Criteria: “This Section consists of landscaping and screening standards and regulations 

for use throughout the City.  The regulations address materials, placement, layout, and timing of 

installation.  The City recognizes the ecological and economic value of landscaping and requires 

the use of landscaping and other screening or buffering to:” Listed A. through K. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

 
26 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 27 of 50 

Explanation of Finding: In complying with the various landscape standards in Section 

4.176 the applicant has demonstrated the proposed Stage II Final Plan is in compliance 

with the landscape purpose statement. 
 

Subsection 4.176 (.02) B. Landscaping Standards and Code Compliance 
 

A47. Review Criteria: “All landscaping and screening required by this Code must comply with all of 

the provisions of this Section, unless specifically waived or granted a Variance as otherwise 

provided in the Code.  The landscaping standards are minimum requirements; higher standards can 

be substituted as long as fence and vegetation-height limitations are met.  Where the standards set a 

minimum based on square footage or linear footage, they shall be interpreted as applying to each 

complete or partial increment of area or length” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: No waivers or variances to landscape standards have been 

requested. Thus all landscaping and screening must comply with standards of this section.  
 

Subsection 4.176 (.02) C. 1. General Landscape Standards-Intent 
 

A48. Review Criteria: “The General Landscaping Standard is a landscape treatment for areas that are 

generally open.  It is intended to be applied in situations where distance is used as the principal 

means of separating uses or developments and landscaping is required to enhance the intervening 

space. Landscaping may include a mixture of ground cover, evergreen and deciduous shrubs, and 

coniferous and deciduous trees.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant‟s submitted landscape plans (applicant‟s sheets L 

1.0 and L2.0) show a variety of plant materials and placement consistent with the general 

landscape standard, specifically along the frontage with SW 95
th

 Avenue and SW Boones 

Ferry Road. 
 

Subsection 4.176 (.02) C. 2. General Landscape Standards-Required Materials 
 

A49. Review Criteria: “Shrubs and trees, other than street trees, may be grouped.  Ground cover 

plants must fully cover the remainder of the landscaped area (see Figure 21:  General 

Landscaping).  The General Landscaping Standard has two different requirements for trees and 

shrubs: 

a. Where the landscaped area is less than 30 feet deep, one tree is required for every 30 

linear feet. 

b. Where the landscaped area is 30 feet deep or greater, one tree is required for every 800 

square feet and two high shrubs or three low shrubs are required for every 400 square feet.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The planting plan (applicant‟s sheet L2.0) shows landscaping 

meeting the functional requirements of this subsection.  
 

Subsection 4.176 (.02) E. 1. High Screen Landscape Standard-Intent 
 

A50. Review Criterion: “The High Screen Landscaping Standard is a landscape treatment that relies 

primarily on screening to separate uses or developments.  It is intended to be applied in situations 

where visual separation is required.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

 
27 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 28 of 50 

Explanation of Finding: No development related to the coffee kiosk requires the high 

screen standards be applied, especially as menu boards are oriented as to not be visible off 

site. If menu boards are relocated so the face of the sign faces Boones Ferry Road or 95
th

 

Avenue, then additional review will be needed to provide landscaping that provides 

appropriate screening such as the planting screening the Carl‟s Jr. menu board.  
 

Subsection 4.176 (.03) Landscape Area and Locations 
 

A51. Review Criteria: “Not less than fifteen percent (15%) of the total lot area, shall be landscaped 

with vegetative plant materials.  The ten percent (10%) parking area landscaping required by 

section 4.155.03(B)(1) is included in the fifteen percent (15%) total lot landscaping requirement.  

Landscaping shall be located in at least three separate and distinct areas of the lot, one of which 

must be in the contiguous frontage area.  Planting areas shall be encouraged adjacent to structures.  

Landscaping shall be used to define, soften or screen the appearance of buildings and off-street 

parking areas.  Materials to be installed shall achieve a balance between various plant forms, 

textures, and heights. The installation of native plant materials shall be used whenever practicable.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: According to the applicant twenty-eight percent (28%) of the site 

is proposed to be in landscaping. The landscaping is in a variety of areas throughout the 

site, including the street frontage areas. Landscaping is placed along the streets to soften 

the look of off-street parking areas. As shown on the applicant‟s sheet L 2.0 a variety of 

landscape materials are being used. 
 

Subsection 4.176 (.04) Buffering and Screening 
 

A52. Review Criteria: “Additional to the standards of this subsection, the requirements of the Section 

4.137.5 (Screening and Buffering Overlay Zone) shall also be applied, where applicable. 

C. All exterior, roof and ground mounted, mechanical and utility equipment shall be 

screened from ground level off-site view from adjacent streets or properties. 

D. All outdoor storage areas shall be screened from public view, unless visible storage has 

been approved for the site by the Development Review Board or Planning Director acting on a 

development permit. 

E. In all cases other than for industrial uses in industrial zones, landscaping shall be 

designed to screen loading areas and docks, and truck parking. 

F. In any zone any fence over six (6) feet high measured from soil surface at the outside of 

fenceline shall require Development Review Board approval.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The buildings are designed so architectural parapets screen roof 

mounted equipment. Mixed-solid waste and recycling storage areas are within screening 

enclosures. No additional outdoor storage areas are proposed.  
 

Subsection 4.176 (.09) Landscape Plans 
 

A53. Review Criteria: “Landscape plans shall be submitted showing all existing and proposed 

landscape areas.  Plans must be drawn to scale and show the type, installation size, number and 

placement of materials.  Plans shall include a plant material list. Plants are to be identified by both 

their scientific and common names. The condition of any existing plants and the proposed method 

of irrigation are also to be indicated.”   
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

 
28 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 29 of 50 

Explanation of Finding: Applicant‟s sheets L1.0 and L2. in Exhibit B2 provide the 

required information. 
 

Subsection 4.176 (.12) Mitigation Standards 
 

A54. Review Criterion: “A mitigation plan is to be approved by the City‟s Development Review 

Board before the destruction, damage, or removal of any existing native plants.”   

Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: No existing native plans are being removed requiring a 

mitigation plan pursuant to this subsection. 
 

Other Standards 
 

Section 4.177 Street Improvement Standards 
 

A55. Review Criteria: This section establishes improvement standards for public streets, along with 

private access drives and travel lanes. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding:  

 Access is provided to the proposed development clear of any obstructions. 

 The travel lanes are proposed to be asphalt and have been constructed to City 

standards. 

 All access lanes are a minimum of 12 feet. 

 The development will comply with requirements of the Fire District. 

 No construction is proposed in the public right-of-way 
 

Section 4.179 Mixed Solid Waste and Recyclables Storage 
 

A56. Review Criteria: This section establishes standards for mixed solid waste and recyclables 

storage in new multi-family residential and non-residential buildings. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: No changes to the mixed solid waste facilities are proposed. The 

proposed coffee kiosk replaces a larger multi-tenant commercial building. The mixed-solid 

waste enclosure designed and built for the multi-tenant building is adequately sized for the 

smaller coffee kiosk.  
 

Sections 4.199.20 Outdoor Lighting 
 

A57. Review Criteria: This section states that the outdoor lighting ordinance is applicable to 

“Installation of new exterior lighting systems in public facility, commercial, industrial and multi-

family housing projects with common areas” and “Major additions or modifications (as defined in 

this Section) to existing exterior lighting systems in public facility, commercial, industrial and 

multi-family housing projects with common areas.” In addition the exempt luminaires and lighting 

systems are listed. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: All the outdoor lighting for the new development on the site is 

being required to comply with the outdoor lighting ordinance. A photometric site plan has 

been provided, sheet SE1.0 (Exhibit B2), showing the functional effect of the proposed 

 
29 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 30 of 50 

lighting on the site. Detailed requirements for site lighting are being reviewed as a 

component of Request B, Site Design Review, of this application. See Findings B32 

through B39. 
 

Sections 4.300-4.320 and Subsection 4.118 (.02) Underground Installation of Utilities 
 

A58. Review Criteria: These sections list requirements regarding the underground installation of 

utilities. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: There are no existing overhead facilities that require 

undergrounding as part of this development. All new utilities associated with the 

development are proposed to be installed underground. 
  

 
30 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 31 of 50 

REQUEST B: DB13-0047 SITE DESIGN REVIEW 
 

Site Design Review 
 

Subsection 4.400 (.01) and Subsection 4.421 (.03) Excessive Uniformity, Inappropriateness of 

Design, Etc. 
 

B1. Review Criteria: “The Board shall also be guided by the purpose of Section 4.400, and such 

objectives shall serve as additional criteria and standards.” “Excessive uniformity, 

inappropriateness or poor design of the exterior appearance of structures and signs and the lack of 

proper attention to site development and landscaping in the business, commercial, industrial and 

certain residential areas of the City hinders the harmonious development of the City, impairs the 

desirability of residence, investment or occupation in the City, limits the opportunity to attain the 

optimum use in value and improvements, adversely affects the stability and value of property, 

produces degeneration of property in such areas and with attendant deterioration of conditions 

affecting the peace, health and welfare, and destroys a proper relationship between the taxable 

value of property and the cost of municipal services therefor.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant provides a response to this subsection on pages 

18-20 of the compliance narrative in their notebook, Exhibit B1. Staff summarizes the 

compliance with this subjection as follows: 

Excessive Uniformity: The design of the coffee kiosk is different from the Carl‟s Jr. 

building, yet complementary, and has an architectural character unique from other 

surrounding development preventing uniformity. The coffee kiosk uses the same brick 

around the base as used on the Carl‟s Jr. building. lap siding and board and baton siding 

are used similarly as with the Carl‟s Jr. building, only painted different colors. 

Inappropriate or Poor Design of the Exterior Appearance of Structures: The coffee kiosk 

is professionally designed with a unique historic “small-town” theme indicative of other 

commercial development in Wilsonville including Old Town Square (Fred Meyer 

development). The result is a professional design appropriate for Wilsonville.  

Inappropriate or Poor Design of Signs: Signs are typical of the type of development 

proposed and meet applicable City standards. See Request C, Master Sign Plan. 

Lack of Proper Attention to Site Development: The appropriate professional services have 

been used to design the site incorporating unique features of the site including site size and 

shape and available access, demonstrating appropriate attention being given to site 

development. 

Lack of Proper Attention to Landscaping: Landscaping is provided exceeding the area 

requirements, has been professionally designed by a landscape architect, and includes a 

variety of plant materials, all demonstrating appropriate attention being given to 

landscaping.  
 

Subsection 4.400 (.02) and Subsection 4.421 (.03) Purposes of Objectives of Site Design 

Review 
 

B2. Review Criteria: “The Board shall also be guided by the purpose of Section 4.400, and such 

objectives shall serve as additional criteria and standards.” “The City Council declares that the 

purposes and objectives of site development requirements and the site design review procedure are 

to:” Listed A through J. 

 
31 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 32 of 50 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant provides a response to design on pages 18-20 of 

the compliance narrative in their notebook, Exhibit B1, demonstrating compliance with the 

listed purposes and objectives. In short, the proposal provides a high quality design 

appropriate for the site and its location in Wilsonville. 
 

Section 4.420 Development in Accordance with Plans 
 

B3. Review Criteria: The section states that development is required in accord with plans approved 

by the Development Review Board. 
Finding: These criteria will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 1. 

Explanation of Finding: A condition of approval has been included to ensure 

construction, site development, and landscaping are carried out in substantial accord with 

the Development Review Board approved plans, drawings, sketches, and other documents. 

No building permits will be granted prior to development review board approval.  
 

Subsection 4.421 (.01) and (.02) Site Design Review-Design Standards 
 

B4. Review Criteria: This subsection lists the design standards for Site Design Review. Listed A 

through G.  Pursuant to subsection (.02) “The standards of review outlined in Sections (a) through 

(g) above shall also apply to all accessory buildings, structures, exterior signs and other site 

features, however related to the major buildings or structures.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant has provided sufficient information demonstrating 

compliance with the standards of this subsection. Among the information provided is a 

written response to these standards on page 18-20 of the compliance narrative in the 

applicant‟s notebook, Exhibit B1. Staff notes a patio area has been provided without 

information on the planned furnishings. Condition of Approval PDB 9 ensures the 

furnishings are durable and match or complement the building, thus helping ensure site 

design review standards are met. 
 

Subsection 4.421 (.05) Site Design Review-Conditions of Approval 
 

B5. Review Criterion: “The Board may attach certain development or use conditions in granting an 

approval that are determined necessary to insure the proper and efficient functioning of the 

development, consistent with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, allowed densities and the 

requirements of this Code.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: No additional conditions of approval are recommended to ensure 

the proper and efficient functioning of the development. 
 

Subsection 4.421 (.06) Color or Materials Requirements 
 

B6. Review Criterion: “The Board or Planning Director may require that certain paints or colors of 

materials be used in approving applications.  Such requirements shall only be applied when site 

development or other land use applications are being reviewed by the City.”   
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

 
32 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 33 of 50 

Explanation of Finding: All material and color information has been provided by the 

applicant. 
 

Section 4.430 Design of Trash and Recycling Enclosures 
 

B7. Review Criteria: “The following locations, design and access standards for mixed solid waste 

and recycling storage areas shall be applicable to the requirements of Section 4.179 of the 

Wilsonville City Code.” Listed (.02) A. through (.04) C. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: No design to the trash and recycling enclosures are proposed as 

part of this application. 
 

Section 4.440 Site Design Review-Submittal Requirements 
 

B8. Review Criteria: This section lists additional submittal requirements for Site Design Review in 

addition to those listed in Section 4.035. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant has submitted the required additional materials, as 

applicable. 
 

Subsection 4.450 (.01) Landscape Installation or Bonding 
 

B9. Review Criterion: “All landscaping required by this section and approved by the Board shall be 

installed prior to issuance of occupancy permits, unless security equal to one hundred and ten 

percent (110%) of the cost of the landscaping as determined by the Planning Director is filed with 

the City assuring such installation within six (6) months of occupancy.  "Security" is cash, certified 

check, time certificates of deposit, assignment of a savings account or such other assurance of 

completion as shall meet with the approval of the City Attorney.  In such cases the developer shall 

also provide written authorization, to the satisfaction of the City Attorney, for the City or its 

designees to enter the property and complete the landscaping as approved.  If the installation of the 

landscaping is not completed within the six-month period, or within an extension of time 

authorized by the Board, the security may be used by the City to complete the installation.  Upon 

completion of the installation, any portion of the remaining security deposited with the City shall 

be returned to the applicant.” 
Finding: This criterion will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 2. 

Explanation of Finding: The condition of approval will assure installation or appropriate 

security at the time occupancy is requested. 
 

Subsection 4.450 (.02) Approved Landscape Plan Binding 
 

B10. Review Criterion: “Action by the City approving a proposed landscape plan shall be binding 

upon the applicant.  Substitution of plant materials, irrigation systems, or other aspects of an 

approved landscape plan shall not be made without official action of the Planning Director or 

Development Review Board, as specified in this Code.” 
Finding: This criterion will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 3. 

Explanation of Finding: The condition of approval shall provide ongoing assurance this 

criterion is met. 
 

 

 
33 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 34 of 50 

Subsection 4.450 (.03) Landscape Maintenance and Watering 
 

B11. Review Criterion: “All landscaping shall be continually maintained, including necessary 

watering, weeding, pruning, and replacing, in a substantially similar manner as originally approved 

by the Board, unless altered with Board approval.” 

Finding: This criterion will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 4. 

Explanation of Finding: The condition of approval will ensure landscaping is continually 

maintained in accordance with this subsection. 
 

Subsection 4.450 (.04) Addition and Modifications of Landscaping 
 

B12. Review Criterion: “If a property owner wishes to add landscaping for an existing development, 

in an effort to beautify the property, the Landscape Standards set forth in Section 4.176 shall not 

apply and no Plan approval or permit shall be required.  If the owner wishes to modify or remove 

landscaping that has been accepted or approved through the City‟s development review process, 

that removal or modification must first be approved through the procedures of Section 4.010.” 
Finding: This criterion will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 4. 

Explanation of Finding: The condition of approval shall provide ongoing assurance that 

this criterion is met by preventing modification or removal without the appropriate City 

review.  
 

On-site Pedestrian Access and Circulation 
 

Subsection 4.154 (.01) B. Standards for On-site Pedestrian Access and Circulation 
 

B13. Review Criteria: This subsection lists standards for on-site pedestrian access and circulation, 

listed 1. through 6. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The design of the on-site pedestrian access and circulation 

described and illustrated in the applicant‟s submitted narrative and plans in relation to 

these provisions are consistent with the purpose of site design review and the proposed 

revised Stage II Final Plan for the site. See Findings A24 through A29 under Request A. 
 

Parking 
 

Subsection 4.155 (.02) Provision and Maintenance of Off-Street Parking 
 

B14. Review Criteria: This subsection lists general provisions for parking, A. through O. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The design of the parking described and illustrated in the 

applicant‟s submitted narrative and plans in relation to these provisions are consistent with 

the purpose of site design review and the proposed revised Stage II Final Plan for the site. 

See Finding A30 under Request A. 
 

Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 1.-3. Landscaping of Parking Areas 
 

B15. Review Criteria: “Parking and loading or delivery areas shall be landscaped to minimize the 

visual dominance of the parking or loading area, as follows:” Listed 1. through 3. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

 
34 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 35 of 50 

Explanation of Finding: As shown in the planting plans, sheet L2.0 of Exhibit B2, 

landscape screening is provided between the proposed parking and the public right-of-way. 

Trees are provided for the proposed parking spaces as required by this subsection. Tree 

planting areas generally meet the minimum size requirements. However, the planting area 

with a tree between a parking stall and the entry to the coffee drive-thru queuing area is 

less than 8 feet wide. Staff has examined other site design option to make this a wider 

planting area, but site constraints prevent making it wider. It is desirable to have a tree and 

other plantings at this location and the planter is as wide a practicable balancing competing 

design requirements and site restraints. 
 

Section 4.171 Protection of Natural Features and Other Resources 
 

B16. Review Criterion: This section provides for the protection of a number of natural features and 

other resources including: general terrain preparation, hillsides, trees and wooded areas, high 

voltage powerline easements and rights of way and petroleum pipeline easements, earth movement 

hazard areas, soil hazard areas, historic resources, and cultural resources. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: None of the resources listed in this section exist on the site or 

will be foreseeably negatively impacted by the development. 
 

Landscaping 
 

Subsection 4.176 (.02) B. Landscape Standards and Compliance with Code 
 

B17. Review Criterion: “All landscaping and screening required by this Code must comply with all of 

the provisions of this Section, unless specifically waived or granted a Variance as otherwise 

provided in the Code.  The landscaping standards are minimum requirements; higher standards can 

be substituted as long as fence and vegetation-height limitations are met.  Where the standards set a 

minimum based on square footage or linear footage, they shall be interpreted as applying to each 

complete or partial increment of area or length” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: No waivers or variances to landscape standards have been 

requested. Thus all landscaping and screening must comply with standards of this section. 
 

Subsection 4.176 (.02) C. 1. General Landscape Standards-Intent 
 

B18. Review Criteria: “The General Landscaping Standard is a landscape treatment for areas that are 

generally open.  It is intended to be applied in situations where distance is used as the principal 

means of separating uses or developments and landscaping is required to enhance the intervening 

space. Landscaping may include a mixture of ground cover, evergreen and deciduous shrubs, and 

coniferous and deciduous trees.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant‟s sheet L2.0 of Exhibit B2 shows a variety of plant 

materials and placement consistent with the general landscape standard. 
 

Subsection 4.176 (.02) C. 2. General Landscape Standards-Required Materials 
 

B19. Review Criteria: “Shrubs and trees, other than street trees, may be grouped.  Ground cover 

plants must fully cover the remainder of the landscaped area (see Figure 21:  General 

 
35 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 36 of 50 

Landscaping).  The General Landscaping Standard has two different requirements for trees and 

shrubs: 

a. Where the landscaped area is less than 30 feet deep, one tree is required for every 30 

linear feet. 

b. Where the landscaped area is 30 feet deep or greater, one tree is required for every 800 

square feet and two high shrubs or three low shrubs are required for every 400 square feet.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The planting plan, sheet L2.0 of Exhibit B2, shows landscaping 

meeting the requirements of this subsection.  
 

Subsection 4.176 (.03) Landscape Area and Locations 
 

B20. Review Criteria: “Not less than fifteen percent (15%) of the total lot area, shall be landscaped 

with vegetative plant materials.  The ten percent (10%) parking area landscaping required by 

section 4.155.03(B)(1) is included in the fifteen percent (15%) total lot landscaping requirement.  

Landscaping shall be located in at least three separate and distinct areas of the lot, one of which 

must be in the contiguous frontage area.  Planting areas shall be encouraged adjacent to structures.  

Landscaping shall be used to define, soften or screen the appearance of buildings and off-street 

parking areas.  Materials to be installed shall achieve a balance between various plant forms, 

textures, and heights. The installation of native plant materials shall be used whenever practicable.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Consistent with the proposed revised Stage II Final Plan for the 

site, the proposed design of the site provides for more than the required amount of 

landscaping and landscaping in at least three separate and distinct areas, including the area 

along SW 95
th

 Avenue and SW Boones Ferry Road. See Finding A51 of Request A. The 

planting plans, sheet L2.0 of Exhibit B2, show landscape placed in areas that will define, 

soften, and screen the appearance of buildings and off-street parking areas.  
 

Subsection 4.176 (.04) Buffering and Screening 
 

B21. Review Criteria: “Additional to the standards of this subsection, the requirements of the Section 

4.137.5 (Screening and Buffering Overlay Zone) shall also be applied, where applicable. 

C. All exterior, roof and ground mounted, mechanical and utility equipment shall be 

screened from ground level off-site view from adjacent streets or properties. 

D. All outdoor storage areas shall be screened from public view, unless visible storage has 

been approved for the site by the Development Review Board or Planning Director acting on a 

development permit.  

E. In all cases other than for industrial uses in industrial zones, landscaping shall be 

designed to screen loading areas and docks, and truck parking. 

F. In any zone any fence over six (6) feet high measured from soil surface at the outside of 

fenceline shall require Development Review Board approval.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The buildings are designed so architectural parapets screen roof 

mounted equipment. Mixed-solid waste and recycling storage areas are within screening 

enclosures. No additional outdoor storage areas are proposed. 
 

 

 

 

 
36 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 37 of 50 

Subsection 4.176 (.06) A. Plant Materials-Shrubs and Groundcover 
 

B22. Review Criteria: This subsection establishes plant material and planting requirements for shrubs 

and ground cover. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied or will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 5. 

Explanation of Finding: The condition of approval requires that the detailed requirements 

of this subsection are met.  
 

Subsection 4.176 (.06) B. Plant Materials-Trees 
 

B23. Review Criteria: This subsection establishes plant material requirements for trees. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The plants material requirements for trees will be met as follows: 

 The applicant‟s planting plan, sheet L2.0 of Exhibit B2, shows all trees as B&B (Balled 

and Burlapped) 

 Landscaping is being required to meet ANSI standards. 

 The applicant‟s planting plan lists tree sizes required by code. 
 

Subsection 4.176 (.06) D. Plant Materials-Street Trees 
 

B24. Review Criteria: This subsection establishes plant material requirements for street trees. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: As shown in their planting plan, sheet L2.0 of Exhibit B2, the 

applicant proposes Bowhall Maple street trees (Acer rubrum “Bowhall”). The proposed 

trees are a cultivar of Acer rubrum, which is listed as a satisfactory street tree in this 

subsection. The trees are proposed to be planted at 3” caliper, the required size for arterial 

streets. 
 

Subsection 4.176 (.06) E. Types of Plant Species 
 

B25. Review Criteria: This subsection discusses use of existing landscaping or native vegetation, 

selection of plant materials, and prohibited plant materials. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant has provided sufficient information showing the 

proposed landscape design meets the standards of this subsection. See sheet L2.0 of 

Exhibit B2. 
 

Subsection 4.176 (.06) G. Exceeding Plant Material Standards 
 

B26. Review Criterion: “Landscape materials that exceed the minimum standards of this Section are 

encouraged, provided that height and vision clearance requirements are met.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The selected landscape materials do not violate any height or 

visions clearance requirements. 
 

 

 

 

 
37 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 38 of 50 

Subsection 4.176 (.07) Installation and Maintenance of Landscaping 
 

B27. Review Criteria: This subsection establishes installation and maintenance standards for 

landscaping. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied or will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 6. 

Explanation of Finding: The installation and maintenance standards are or will be met as 

follows: 

 Plant materials are required to be installed to current industry standards and be properly 

staked to ensure survival 

 Plants that die are required to be replaced in kind, within one growing season, unless 

appropriate substitute species are approved by the City. 

 Sheet L1.0 of Exhibit B2 shows a permanent built-in irrigation system with an 

automatic controller satisfying the related standards of this subsection. 
 

Subsection 4.176 (.09) Landscape Plans 
 

B28. Review Criterion: “Landscape plans shall be submitted showing all existing and proposed 

landscape areas.  Plans must be drawn to scale and show the type, installation size, number and 

placement of materials.  Plans shall include a plant material list. Plants are to be identified by both 

their scientific and common names.  The condition of any existing plants and the proposed method 

of irrigation are also to be indicated.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Sheets L1.0 and L2.0, of Exhibit B2 provide the required 

information. 
 

Subsection 4.176 (.10) Completion of Landscaping 
 

B29. Review Criterion: “The installation of plant materials may be deferred for a period of time 

specified by the Board or Planning Director acting on an application, in order to avoid hot summer 

or cold winter periods, or in response to water shortages.  In these cases, a temporary permit shall 

be issued, following the same procedures specified in subsection (.07)(C)(3), above, regarding 

temporary irrigation systems.  No final Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until an adequate 

bond or other security is posted for the completion of the landscaping, and the City is given written 

authorization to enter the property and install the required landscaping, in the event that the 

required landscaping has not been installed. The form of such written authorization shall be 

submitted to the City Attorney for review.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant has not requested to defer installation of plant 

materials.  
 

Subsection 4.176 (.12) Mitigation and Restoration Plantings 
 

B30. Review Criterion: “A mitigation plan is to be approved by the City‟s Development Review 

Board before the destruction, damage, or removal of any existing native plants.”   
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Consistent with the proposed revised Stage II Final Plan, the 

proposed landscape design involves no removal of existing native plans requiring a 

mitigation plan pursuant to this subsection. 

 
38 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 39 of 50 

 

Other Standards 
 

Section 4.179 Mixed Solid Waste and Recyclables Storage 
 

B31. Review Criterion: This section establishes standards for mixed solid waste and recyclables 

storage in new multi-family residential and non-residential buildings. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The design of the mixed-solid waste and recycling enclosures is 

not proposed to be changed by this application. 
 

Outdoor Lighting 
 

Section 4.199.20 Applicability of Outdoor Lighting Standards 
 

B32. Review Criterion: This section states that the outdoor lighting ordinance is applicable to 

“Installation of new exterior lighting systems in public facility, commercial, industrial and multi-

family housing projects with common areas” and “Major additions or modifications (as defined in 

this Section) to existing exterior lighting systems in public facility, commercial, industrial and 

multi-family housing projects with common areas.” In addition the exempt luminaires and lighting 

systems are listed. 

Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Non-exempt new outdoor lighting proposed for the development 

site is being required to comply with the outdoor lighting ordinance.  
 

Section 4.199.30 Outdoor Lighting Zones 
 

B33. Review Criterion: “The designated Lighting Zone as indicated on the Lighting Overlay Zone 

Map for a commercial, industrial, multi-family or public facility parcel or project shall determine 

the limitations for lighting systems and fixtures as specified in this Ordinance.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The development site is within LZ 2 and the proposed outdoor 

lighting systems are being reviewed under the standards of this lighting zone. 
 

Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) A. Alternative Methods of Outdoor Lighting Compliance 
 

B34. Review Criterion: “All outdoor lighting shall comply with either the Prescriptive Option or the 

Performance Option below.”   
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant has submitted information to comply with the 

performance option. 
 

Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) C. Performance Option for Outdoor Lighting Compliance 
 

“If the lighting is to comply with the Performance Option, the proposed lighting design shall be 

submitted by the applicant for approval by the City meeting all of the following:” Listed 1. 

through 3. 
 

 

 
39 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 40 of 50 

Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) C. 1. Weighted Average of Direct Uplight Lumens Standard 
 

B35. Review Criteria: “The weighted average percentage of direct uplight lumens shall be less than 

the allowed amount per Table 9.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied or will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 8. 

Explanation of Finding: As shown in the revised sheet SE1.0 provided with the 

applicant‟s notebook, Exhibit B1, the only luminaires that are not fully shielded are the 

landscape bollards. The luminaires are such that the weighted average percentage of direct 

uplight lumens will be less than five percent (5%). A condition of approval limits all wall 

mounted fixtures to down lighting. 
 

Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) C. 2. Maximum Light Level at Property Lines 
 

B36. Review Criteria: “The maximum light level at any property line shall be less than the 

values in  Table 9, as evidenced by a complete photometric analysis including horizontal 

illuminance of the site and vertical illuminance on the plane facing the site up to the 

mounting height of the luminaire mounted highest above grade.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Sheet SE1.0 shows the horizontal foot candles comply with 

Table 9. The applicant states on page 18 of their compliance narrative, the vertical foot 

candles remain substantially the same as previously approved as compliant with Table 9. 
 

Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) C. 2. Maximum Light Level at Property Lines 
 

B37. Review Criteria: “Luminaires shall not be mounted so as to permit aiming or use in any 

way other than the manner maintaining the shielding classification required herein:” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The mountings will be in a downward position. Condition of 

Approval PDB 8 helps ensure this 
 

Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) D. Outdoor Lighting Curfew 
 

B38. Review Criterion: “All prescriptive or performance based exterior lighting systems shall be 

controlled by automatic device(s) or system(s) that:” Listed 1. through 3. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied or will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 7. 

Explanation of Finding: As previously approved, Carl‟s Jr. is exempt from lighting 

curfew as a 24/7 operation. However, the coffee kiosk is not. A condition of approval 

requires lighting associated with this building and supporting parking shall be dimmed at 

10:00 p.m. pursuant to Table 10. 
 

Subsection 4.199.50 Submittal Requirements 
 

B39. Review Criteria: “Applicants shall submit the following information as part of DRB review or 

administrative review of new commercial, industrial, multi-family or public facility projects:” 

Listed A. through F. “In addition to the above submittal requirements, Applicants using the 

Prescriptive Method shall submit the following information as part of the permit set plan review:  

A. A site lighting plan (items 1 A - F, above) which indicates for each luminaire the 3 

mounting height line to demonstrate compliance with the setback requirements. For luminaires 

 
40 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 41 of 50 

mounted within 3 mounting heights of the property line the compliance exception or special 

shielding requirements shall be clearly indicated.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant has submitted sufficient information to review the 

application. 
  

 
41 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 42 of 50 

REQUEST C: DB13-0048 MASTER SIGN PLAN REVISION AND SIGN WAIVER 
 

Subsection 4.031 (.01) M. and Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) and (.07) C. Review Process 
 

C1. Review Criteria: These subsections establish that Master Sign Plans are reviewed by the 

Development Review Board and that modifications to Master Sign Plans other than minor and 

major adjustments are reviewed the same as a new Master Sign Plan. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Due to the request for a waiver the request does not qualify as a 

minor or major adjustment and is therefore being reviewed the same as a new Master Sign 

Plan. 
 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) A. Master Sign Plan Submission Requirements 
 

C2. Review Criteria: This subsection identifies submission requirements for Master Sign Plans 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: As indicated in the table below the applicant has either satisfied 

the submission requirements, or has been granted a waiver under Subsection 4.156.02 

(.10). 
 

Requirement 

S
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

W
a

iv
er

 

G
ra

n
te

d
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

o
f 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 

N
o

t 

A
p

p
li

ca
b

le
 

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

fi
n

d
in

g
s/

n
o

te
s 

  

In
fo

 
A

lr
ea

d
y
 

A
v

a
il

a
b

le
 t

o
 C

it
y
 

In
fo

 
N

o
t 

N
ec

es
sa

ry
 

fo
r 

R
ev

ie
w

 

   

Completed Application 

Form 
      

 

Sign Drawings or 

Descriptions 
     

 

Documentation of 

Building/Tenant Space 

Lengths 

     

 

Drawings of Sign 

Placement of Building 

Facades 

     

 

Project Narrative       

 

  

 
42 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 43 of 50 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.05) E. Class II Sign Permit Review Criteria: Generally and Site Design 

Review 
 

C3. Review Criteria: “Class II Sign Permits shall satisfy the sign regulations for the applicable 

zoning district and the Site Design Review Criteria in Sections 4.400 through 4.421,” Pursuant to 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) B. these criteria are also applicable to Master Sign Plans. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: As indicated in Findings C25 through C31 these criteria are met. 
 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.05) E. 1. Class II Sign Permit Review Criteria: Compatibility with Zone  
 

C4. Review Criteria: “The proposed signage is compatible with developments or uses permitted in 

the zone in terms of design, materials used, color schemes, proportionality, and location, so that it 

does not interfere with or detract from the visual appearance of surrounding development;” 

Pursuant to Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) B. these criteria are also applicable to Master Sign Plans. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The proposed signage is typical of and compatible with 

development within the PDC zones. This includes a design and colors reflecting corporate 

identity, illuminated channel letters and logo on a raceway, freestanding cabinet signs, and 

individual non-illuminated letters on an architectural wall. The placement of signs on 

buildings is in recognizable sign bands, and proportional to the building facades. No 

evidence exists nor has testimony been received that the subject signs would detract from 

the visual appearance of the surrounding development. 
 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.05) E. 2. Class II Sign Permit Review Criteria: Nuisance and Impact on 

Surrounding Properties 
 

C5. Review Criteria: “The proposed signage will not create a nuisance or result in a significant 

reduction in the value or usefulness of surrounding development;” Pursuant to Subsection 4.156.02 

(.07) B. these criteria are also applicable to Master Sign Plans. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: There is no evidence and no testimony has been received that the 

subject signs would create a nuisance or negatively impact the value of surrounding 

properties. 
 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.05) E. 3. Class II Sign Permit Review Criteria: Items for Special 

Attention 
 

C6. Review Criteria: “Special attention is paid to the interface between signs and other site elements 

including building architecture and landscaping, including trees.” Pursuant to Subsection 4.156.02 

(.07) B. these criteria are also applicable to Master Sign Plans. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The building signs are within an architectural feature identifiable 

as a sign band with a buffer within the sign band around the sign, which demonstrates 

consideration of the interface between the signs and building architecture. No sign-tree 

conflicts have been noted.  
 

 

 
43 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 44 of 50 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.06) B. Class III Sign Permit Review Criteria 
 

C7. Review Criteria: “The review criteria for Class II Sign Permits plus waiver or variance criteria 

when applicable.” Pursuant to Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) B. these criteria are also applicable to 

Master Sign Plans. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: A waiver is being requested and responses to the waiver criteria 

have been provided. 
 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) B.1. Master Sign Plan Review Criteria: Consistent and Compatible 

Design 
 

C8. Review Criteria: “The Master Sign Plan provides for consistent and compatible design of signs 

throughout the development.”  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The channel letter/logo design is similar to what was previously 

approved for the multi-tenant commercial building. The coffee kiosk signs are consistent 

with the design of the signs approved and installed on the Carl‟s Jr. building. No additional 

freestanding signs are proposed. Directional signs are similar in character to the Carl‟s Jr. 

directional signs and are typical of drive-thru establishments. 
 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) B.2. Master Sign Plan Review Criteria: Future Needs 
 

C9. Review Criteria: “The Master Sign Plan considers future needs, including potential different 

configuration of tenant spaces and different sign designs, if allowed.”  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Staff recommends increasing the sign allowance to 25.4 square 

feet on each façade to allow flexibility of sign design over time within a rectangle that the 

proposed sign fits within. 
 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.08) A. Sign Waiver 
 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.08) A. Waivers in General 
 

C10. Review Criteria: “The DRB may grant waivers for sign area, sign height from ground (no 

waiver shall be granted to allow signs to exceed thirty-five (35) feet in height), number of signs, or 

use of electronic changeable copy signs in order to better implement the purpose and objectives of 

the sign regulations as determined by making findings that all of the following criteria are met:” 

Listed 1.-4. See Findings C12 through C15 below. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: A waiver is being requested for sign area consistent with this 

subsection. 
 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.08) A. 1. Waivers Criteria: Improved Design 
 

C11. Review Criteria: “The waiver will result in improved sign design, in regards to both aesthetics 

and functionality.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

 
44 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 45 of 50 

Explanation of Finding: The proposed coffee kiosk is a particularly long narrow building 

at only 12‟ 10” wide with a length of 35‟ 4”. According to the table showing the sign area 

allowed in Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) B. 1. the two longer facades would be allowed 35.33 

square feet of sign area, and the shorter facade would be allowed 12.83 square feet of sign 

area. The waiver allows signs of equal size to be placed on three facades that are of a 

consistent size and design creating a consistent look for portions of the buildings that are 

otherwise architecturally similar. The applicant in their narrative requests 15.83 square feet 

of signage for each of three facades. Staff notes the applicant‟s method of measurement 

does not follow the measurement method prescribed in Section 4.156.03. Staff additionally 

notes greater flexibility for future branding updates or tenant changes would be enabled by 

requesting a sign area equal to a rectangle drawn around the entire sign. Staff recommends 

a waiver be approved for the allowed sign area to be increased to 25.4 square feet on the 

12.83 long facade. 
 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.08) A. 2. Waivers Criteria: More Compatible and Complementary 
 

C12. Review Criteria: “The waiver will result in improved sign design, in regards to both aesthetics 

and functionality.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The waiver will provide for more consistent signs around the 

building and neighboring buildings providing for compatible and complementary design. 
 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.08) A .3. Waivers Criteria: Impact on Public Safety 
 

C13. Review Criteria: “The waiver will result in a sign or signs that improve, or at least do not 

negatively impact, public safety, especially traffic safety.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: If anything, the added readability of the sign facing the 

intersection will aid drivers in making decisions on maneuvers earlier. No negative impacts 

on safety have been noted. 
 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.08) A .4. Waivers Criteria: Content Neutrality 
 

C14. Review Criteria: “Sign content is not being considered when determining whether or not to 

grant a waiver.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Sign content is not being considered in granting the waiver. 

Similar consideration on building shape would occur regardless of the tenant or message. 
 

Section 4.156.03 Sign Measurement 
 

Subsection 4.156.03 (.01) B. Measurement of Individual Element Signs 
 

C15. Review Criteria:“The area for signs constructed of individual elements (letters, figures, etc.)  

attached to a building wall or similar surface or structure  shall be the summed area of up to three 

squares, rectangles , circles, or triangles drawn around all sign elements.”  

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

 
45 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 46 of 50 

Explanation of Finding: The proposed signs have not been measured consistent with this 

subsection. However, as recommended by Staff the proposed Master Sign Plan revision 

allows for the proposed signs measured according to this subsection. 
 

Subsection 4.156.03 (.03) A.-B. Measurement of Sign Height and Length 
 

C16. Review Criteria: “Height of a sign is the vertical distance between the lowest and highest points 

of the sign.” 

Length of a sign is the horizontal distance between the furthest left and right points of the sign.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The proposed signs have been measured consistent with this 

subsection. 
 

Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) L. Design of Sign Based on Initial Tenant Configuration and Size 
 

C17. Review Criteria: “When a sign is designed based on the number of planned tenant spaces it shall 

remain a legal, conforming sign regardless of the change in the number of tenants or configuration 

of tenant spaces.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The master sign plan is proposed based on the number of 

planned tenants, and it is understood the sign plan will be valid regardless on the number 

of future tenants. 
 

Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) Building Signs in the PDC, PDI, and PF Zones 
 

Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) A. Sign Eligible Facades 
 

C18. Review Criteria: “Building signs are allowed on a facade of a tenant space or single tenant 

building when one or more of the following criteria are met: 

1. The facade has one or more entrances open to the general public; 

2. The facade faces a lot line with frontage on a street or private drive with a cross section 

similar to a public street, and no other buildings on the same lot obstruct the view of the 

building facade from the street or private drive; or 

3. The facade is adjacent to the primary parking area for the building or tenant.” 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: All facades of the proposed coffee kiosk are sign eligible. The 

north, east, and west face lot lines with frontages of public streets. The south facade faces 

the primary parking area. 
  

 
46 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 47 of 50 

Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) B. Building Sign Area Allowed 
 

C19. Review Criteria: This subsection includes a table identifying the sign area allowed for facades 

based on the linear length of the façade. Exception are listed 2. through 5. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: There are no changes to the previously approved sign allowance 

for the Carl‟s Jr. building. The following are the allowances for the proposed coffee kiosk. 
 

Coffee Kiosk 

Façade 
Linear 
Length 

Sign Area 
Allowed 

Proposed Max 
Staff 

Recommendation 

North 12.83 feet 12.83 sf 15.86 sf 25.4 sf 
East 34.33 feet 34.33 sf 15.86 sf 25.4 sf 
South 12.83 feet 12.83 sf 0 sf 0 sf 
West 34.33 feet 34.33 sf 15.86 sf 25.4 sf 

 

The proposed coffee kiosk in a particularly long narrow building at only 12‟ 10” wide 

with a length of 35‟ 4”. According to the table showing the sign area allowed in 

Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) B. 1. the two longer facades would be allowed 35.33 square 

feet of sign area, and the shorter facade would be allowed12.83 square feet of sign area. 

The applicant in their narrative requests 15.83 square feet of signage for each of three 

facades, which includes a waiver to increase the sign area on the north facade. Staff notes 

the applicant‟s method of measurement does not follow the measurement method 

prescribed in Section 4.156.03. Staff additionally notes greater flexibility for future 

branding updates or tenant changes would be enabled by requesting a sign area equal to a 

rectangle drawn around the entire sign. Staff recommends the DRB approve 25.4 square 

feet on the east, west, and north facades. See also Finding C11 regarding waiver request. 
 

Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) B. 6. Calculating Linear Length to Determine Sign Area Allowed. 
 

C20. Review Criteria: “For facades of a single tenant building the length the facade measured at the 

building line, except as noted in a. and b. below. For multi-tenant buildings the width of the façade 

of the tenant space shall be measured from the centerline of the party walls or the outer extent of 

the exterior wall at the building line, as applicable, except as noted in a. and b. below. Applicants 

shall provide the dimensions needed to calculate the length. Each tenant space or single occupant 

building shall not be considered to have more than five (5) total facades.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant has supplied the required measurements used to 

determine linear lengths according to this subsection. 
 

Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) C. Building Sign Length Allowed 
 

C21. Review Criterion: “The length of individual tenant signs shall not exceed seventy-five (75) 

percent of the length of the facade of the tenant space.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: None of the proposed sign bands exceed seventy-five (75) 

percent of the length of the façade. 
 

 

 
47 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 48 of 50 

Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) D. Building Sign Height Allowed 
 

C22. Review Criteria: “The height of building signs shall be within a definable sign band, fascia, or 

architectural feature and allow a definable space between the sign and the top and bottom of the 

sign band, fascia, or architectural feature.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: All of the proposed sign bands are within a definable 

architectural feature and have a definable space between the sign and the top and bottom of 

the architectural feature. 
 

Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) E. Building Sign Types Allowed 
 

C23. Review Criterion: “Types of signs permitted on buildings include wall flat, fascia, projecting, 

blade, marquee and awning signs.  Roof-top signs are prohibited.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: All the proposed buildings signs are wall flat, which is an 

allowable type. 
 

Subsection 4.156.08 (.03) A. Additional Signs: Directional Signs 
 

C24. Review Criteria: “Notwithstanding the signs allowed based on the site in (.01) and (.02) above, 

the following signs may be permitted, subject to standards and conditions in this Code:” “In 

addition to exempt directional signs allowed under Subsection 4.156.05 (.02) C. freestanding or 

ground mounted directional signs six (6) square feet or less in area and four (4) feet or less in 

height: 

1. The signs shall be designed to match or complement the architectural design of buildings 

on the site; 

2. The signs shall only be placed at the intersection of internal circulation drives; and 

3. No more than one (1) sign shall be placed per intersection corner with no more than two 

(2) signs per intersection.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied or will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDC 3. 

Explanation of Finding: Two (2) illuminated double faced directional signs are proposed 

as part of the Master Sign Plan. The signs are shown in the applicant‟s sign section of their  

notebook, Exhibit B1. Exhibit B1 shows the signs slightly larger than 6 square feet. A 

condition of approval requires they be limited to six (6) square feet. The signs are shown at 

4‟ tall. The signs match the design of other signs on the property and complement the 

architecture of the building similarly. The signs are placed at the intersection of internal 

circulation drives, and only one sign is placed per intersection. 
 

Site Design Review 
 

Subsections 4.400 (.01) and 4.421 (.03) Excessive Uniformity, Inappropriateness of Design, 

Etc. 
 

C25. Review Criteria: “The Board shall also be guided by the purpose of Section 4.400, and such 

objectives shall serve as additional criteria and standards.” “Excessive uniformity, 

inappropriateness or poor design of the exterior appearance of structures and signs and the lack of 

proper attention to site development and landscaping in the business, commercial, industrial and 

certain residential areas of the City hinders the harmonious development of the City, impairs the 

 
48 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 49 of 50 

desirability of residence, investment or occupation in the City, limits the opportunity to attain the 

optimum use in value and improvements, adversely affects the stability and value of property, 

produces degeneration of property in such areas and with attendant deterioration of conditions 

affecting the peace, health and welfare, and destroys a proper relationship between the taxable 

value of property and the cost of municipal services therefor.”  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding:  
Excessive Uniformity: The sign plan allows for a variety of sign shapes, fonts, and colors 

chosen by different tenants so as to avoid excessive uniformity. 

Inappropriate or Poor Design of Signs: Signs are typical of the type of development 

proposed found to be appropriate throughout the City. As issuance of the Class I Sign 

Permits consistent with the Master Sign Plan the City will ensure quality design of signs. 

Lack of Proper Attention to Site Development: The appropriate professional services have 

been used to design the site incorporating unique features of the site including site size and 

shape, and available access, demonstrating appropriate attention being given to site 

development and sign placement. 

Lack of Proper Attention to Landscaping: Landscaping around the monument sign and 

freestanding sign is consistent with other landscaping on the property and is of an 

acceptable quality and design.  
 

Subsections 4.400 (.02) and 4.421 (.03) Purposes of Objectives of Site Design Review 
 

C26. Review Criteria: “The Board shall also be guided by the purpose of Section 4.400, and such 

objectives shall serve as additional criteria and standards.” “The City Council declares that the 

purposes and objectives of site development requirements and the site design review procedure are 

to:” Listed A through J. including D. which reads “Conserve the City's natural beauty and visual 

character and charm by assuring that structures, signs and other improvements are properly related 

to their sites, and to surrounding sites and structures, with due regard to the aesthetic qualities of 

the natural terrain and landscaping, and that proper attention is given to exterior appearances of 

structures, signs and other improvements;”  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: It is staff‟s professional opinion that the signs comply with the 

purposes and objectives of site design review, especially objective D. which specifically 

mentions signs. The proposed signs are of a scale and design appropriately related to the 

subject site and the appropriate amount of attention has been given to visual appearance. 
 

Subsection 4.421 (.01) Site Design Review-Design Standards 
 

C27. Review Criteria: This subsection lists the design standards for Site Design Review. Listed A 

through G. Only F. is applicable to this application, which reads, “Advertising Features.  In 

addition to the requirements of the City's sign regulations, the following criteria should be 

included:  the size, location, design, color, texture, lighting and materials of all exterior signs and 

outdoor advertising structures or features shall not detract from the design of proposed buildings 

and structures and the surrounding properties.”  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: There is no indication that the size, location, design, color, 

texture, lighting or material of the proposed signs would detract from the design of the 

building and the surrounding properties. 

 
49 of 92



Development Review Board Panel „A‟Staff Report January 6, 2014 Exhibit A1 

Boones Ferry Pointe: The Human Bean Drive-thru Coffee Kiosk 

DB13-0046, DB13-0047, DB13-0048  Page 50 of 50 

 

Subsection 4.421 (.02) Applicability of Design Standards to Signs 
 

C28. Review Criteria: “The standards of review outlined in Sections (a) through (g) above shall also 

apply to all accessory buildings, structures, exterior signs and other site features, however related to 

the major buildings or structures.”  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Design standards have been applied to exterior signs, as 

applicable, see Finding C27 above. 
 

Subsection 4.421 (.05) Site Design Review-Conditions of Approval 
 

C29. Review Criterion: “The Board may attach certain development or use conditions in granting an 

approval that are determined necessary to insure the proper and efficient functioning of the 

development, consistent with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, allowed densities and the 

requirements of this Code.”  
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: No additional conditions of approval are recommended to ensure 

the proper and efficient functioning of the development. 
 

Subsection 4.421 (.06) Color or Materials Requirements 
 

C30. Review Criterion: “The Board or Planning Director may require that certain paints or colors of 

materials be used in approving applications.  Such requirements shall only be applied when site 

development or other land use applications are being reviewed by the City.”   
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: Staff does not recommend any additional requirements for 

materials or colors for the proposed signs.  
 

Section 4.440 Site Design Review-Procedures 
 

C31. Review Criteria: “A prospective applicant for a building or other permit who is subject to site 

design review shall submit to the Planning Department, in addition to the requirements of Section 

4.035, the following:” Listed A through F.  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

Explanation of Finding: The applicant has submitted a sign plan as required by this 

section. 
 

 
50 of 92



EXHIBIT C1 
PLANNING DIVISION  

STAFF REPORT 
 

BOONES FERRY POINTE – HUMAN BEAN COFFEE KIOSK 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD PANEL ‘___’ 
QUASI JUDICIAL HEARING 

 
 

Public Hearing Date:   
Date of Report:   
Application Numbers:  Request A: DB13-0046  

Request B: DB13-0047 
Request C: DB13-0048  

Property 
Owners/Applicants:  
 

 

 
PD = Planning Division conditions 
BD – Building Division Conditions 
PF = Engineering Conditions. 
NR = Natural Resources Conditions 
TR = SMART/Transit Conditions 
FD = Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue Conditions  
 
 

 
51 of 92

swhite
Stamp



Specific Comments:  

PF 1. Engineering Public Facilities Conditions of Approval (PF conditions) for 
DB12-0074 and DB12-0075 remain in effect for this project accept as 
further modified below. 

PF 2. At the request of Staff, DKS Associates completed a Trip Generation memo 
dated September 5, 2013 revising a previously completed Carl’s Jr. Traffic 
Impact Study that was completed in May 2012.  The proposed use is 
expected to generate 13 fewer new primary trips than the previously 
approved use. The project is hereby limited to no more than the following 
impacts. 

 
Estimated New PM Peak Hour Trips 117 

PF 3. Stormwater detention and storm water quality for this site will be handled 
via the stormwater facility constructed with the Boones Ferry Pointe project. 

PF 4. The project shall connect to the existing Storm lateral constructed with the 
Boones Ferry Pointe project. 

PF 5. The project shall connect to the existing Sanitary Sewer stub constructed 
with the Boones Ferry Pointe project. 

PF 6. The project shall connect to the existing Water service constructed with the 
Boones Ferry Pointe. project. 

 

 
52 of 92



Development Review Template 
DATE: 12/12/13 
TO:  DAN PAULY AICP, ASSOCIATE PLANNER 
FROM: DON WALTERS 
SUBJECT: DEVELOPMENT REVIEW # DB13-46, -47, -48 

WORK DESCRIPTION: NEW HUMAN BEAN DRIVE/WALK-UP COFFEE KIOSK 

***************************************************************************   

Building Division Conditions: 

BD 1. ACCESSIBLE.  At least one of the walk-up service windows shall be accessible. 

 
53 of 92

swhite
Stamp



 
54 of 92

swhite
Stamp



1

Pauly, Daniel

From: Terra Burns <Terra@laidlawandlaidlaw.com>
Sent: Friday, January 03, 2014 1:55 PM
To: Pauly, Daniel
Cc: Alec Laidlaw; wallace.lien@lienlaw.com; garrylapoint@gmail.com; gl@eoni.com
Subject: Development Review Board Public Hearing- The Human Bean
Attachments: Ltr to DRB re Devco public hearing submittal 2014.01.03.pdf; ORCP 21 Motions 

2013.12.27.pdf; Dec of Garry LaPoint in Support 2013.12.30.pdf; UTCR 5.010 CERT OF 
COMPLAINCE 2013.12.27.pdf

Hello Mr. Pauly— 
 
Attached please find the letter and referenced pleadings regarding the Public Hearing set for January 13, 2014 regarding 
The Human Bean. 
 
Thank you, 

Terra Jane Burns  

Paralegal 

 

Laidlaw & Laidlaw, PC 

21590 Willamette Drive 

West Linn, Oregon 97068 

Tel. 503.305.6894 

Fax. 888.287.4840 

www.laidlawandlaidlaw.com 

Terra@laidlawandlaidlaw.com 

Terra Burns is not an attorney and not licensed to practice law.  She does not intend to give legal advice to anyone, and 

no information in this email should be construed as such. 

 

CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMENT: This electronic message contains information that may be confidential or privileged. 

The information contained herein is intended solely for the use of the people named above. If you are not the intended 

recipient of this message, you are hereby advised that any disclosure, copying, distribution, or use of the contents of this 

message is prohibited.  If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify me immediately by telephone at (503) 305-

6894 or by e-mail reply, and delete this message. 

 

 
55 of 92

swhite
Stamp



 
56 of 92



 
57 of 92



 
58 of 92



 
59 of 92



 
60 of 92



 
61 of 92



 
62 of 92



 
63 of 92



 
64 of 92



 
65 of 92



 
66 of 92



 
67 of 92



 
68 of 92



 
69 of 92



 
70 of 92



 
71 of 92



 
72 of 92



 
73 of 92



 
74 of 92



 
75 of 92



 
76 of 92



 
77 of 92



 
78 of 92



 
79 of 92



 
80 of 92



 
81 of 92



 
82 of 92



 
83 of 92



 
84 of 92



 
85 of 92



 
86 of 92



 
87 of 92



 
88 of 92



 
89 of 92



 
90 of 92



 
91 of 92



 
92 of 92



swhite
Stamp

swhite
Stamp

































 
 
 

Application 





 
 
 

Compliance 
Report 













































 
 
 

DKS Traffic 
Impact Memo 









 
 
 

Approved 
Site Plan 





 
 
 

Signage 





















 
 
 

Lighting Details 
& 

Photometrics 



















 
 
 

Revised Site 
&  

Architectural Plans 





















swhite
Stamp
































	2. Consent Dec 9 2013 Minutes.pdf
	III. Roll Call:
	V. City Council Liaison Report:
	No report was given due to Councilor Stevens� absence.

	APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA:
	Request A � Revised Stage II Final Plan
	MASTER EXHIBIT LIST
	The following exhibits are hereby entered into the public record by the Development Review Board in consideration of the application as submitted:
	Compass Direction
	CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS
	REQUEST A
	DB13-0044: REVISED STAGE II FINAL PLAN 
	Section 4.155. General Regulations - Parking, Loading and Bicycle Parking.
	(.02)  General Provisions:
	(.03) Minimum and Maximum Off-Street Parking Requirements:

	A21. Ash Meadows Road and the existing access at SW Parkway serving the Jory Trail Apartments meet City�s access management guidelines and will serve the project site.
	Section 4.175: Public Safety and Crime Prevention

	A24. The proposed pedestrian paths and linkage are consistent with the City's pedestrian-friendly policies.
	Section 4.176: Landscaping. Screening, and Buffering
	C. General Landscaping Standard.
	D. Low Screen Landscaping Standard

	Section 4.199 Outdoor Lighting
	Section 4.199.40: Lighting Systems Standards for Approval

	Section 4.421. Criteria and Application of Design Standards.
	Section 4.430. Location, Design and Access Standards for mixed Solid Waste and Recycling Areas

	REQUEST B
	DB13-0045: SITE DESIGN REVIEW 
	Jory Trail at the Grove Parking Addition 
	1.2.3. Incompleteness Letter and Response
	4.Application Form
	5.Project Narrative
	6.Traffic Report
	7.Currently Approved Site Plan
	8a.Sign Information
	8b.Sign Information B
	9.Lighting Plans and Details
	10a.Color Renderings of Building and Site
	10b.Plan Sheets
	20131209144333799



